
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
NORTH WEST AREA COMMITTEE 

 
COISTE CHEANTAR AN IARTUAISCIRT 

 
 
To each member of the North West Area Committee (Ballymun and Cabra/Finglas, Local Electoral 
Areas). 
 
 
Notification to attend the monthly meeting of the above committee to be held in the North West 
Area, Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Main Street, Ballymun, Dublin 9 on Tuesday 15th November 
at 2.30 p.m. to deal with the items on the attached Agenda.   
 
Dated this Friday 11th November 2016. 
 
 
Dave Dinnigan 
Area Manager 
 
 

Contacts: 
Bridget Gilbert/Mary Bellew 
North West Area, 
Finglas Civic Centre, 
Mellowes Road, 
Finglas. 
 
Tel:  222 7878 / 222 5728 
Fax: 834 6431 / 856 7016     
 
E-mail: Bridget.gilbert@dublincity.ie;  
    Mary.bellew@dublincity.ie 
. 
   
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:Bridget.gilbert@dublincity.ie
mailto:Mary.bellew@dublincity.ie


 
 

 
MEETING OF THE NORTH WEST AREA COMMITTEE 

 
TO BE HELD IN THE CONFERENCE ROOM - BALLYMUN CIVIC OFFICES, 

 
ON TUESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2016 AT 2.30 PM 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of the North West Area Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 18th 

October 2016   
 

1 - 6 

2   Questions to the Area Manager   
 

7 - 16 

Cabra Matters 
 

 

3   Cabra Area Office Report, Fergus Synnott, Administrative Officer   
 

17 - 20 

4   Nominations to the Phibsborough Local Environmental Improvement Plan 
Monitoring Committee.   
 

 

Housing Matters:  Cabra - Finglas 
 

 

5   Housing Cabra/Finglas Report, Derek Healy, Housing Manager   
 

21 - 26 

Finglas Matters 
 

 

6   Finglas Area Office Report, Aidan Maher, Assistant Area Manager   
 

27 - 30 

Motions: 
 

 

7   Motion in the name of Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 
The Manager arranges for a re-design of the roundabout at the junction of 
Mellowes Road and Finglaswood Road which would lead to less confusion for 
drivers approaching when oncoming cars are turning right. 
 

 

8   Motion in the name of Councillor Anthony Connaghan: 
 
That the Manager arranges for speed ramps to be placed along Ratoath Road 
from Westwood to Dunsink Lane where cars regularly speed along the road. 
There has been a number of reports of near misses when cars are trying to exit 
the Westwood Estate at various times. 
 

 

9   Motion in the name of Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud: 
 
That Dublin City Council CPO the Drake Inn, Finglas village which has been an 
eyesore for many years now. Previous requests by the council to the owner to 
have improvements carried out on the building seem to be ignored and there are 
serious concerns about the environmental hazards within the property. Finglas 
village needs properties such as this to be open as a working business which 
contributes to the village. The state of The Drake has a huge negative impact if 
trying to encourage business investment in the area. 

 



 
 

 
10   Motion in the name of Councillor David Costello 

 
That the manager provides Monthly Updates in relation to the Area known as the 
"Barry Shops" Finglas West and that this be included as a standing item on the 
Agenda until it is brought to a satisfactory conclusion. 
 

 

11   Motion in the name of Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
 
The NWAC recognise the property rights of the owners of the former Drake Inn 
and separately the owners of the former Barry House but call on these owners to 
also live up to their responsibilities and take immediate steps to bring into use 
these sites. The NWAC requests that the City Council inform the owners of these 
properties of this motion and invite them to make a presentation before the Area 
Committee as soon as possible.   
 

 

Area Wide Matters 
 

 

12   Discussion on Discretionary Fund 2017 - Dave Dinnigan, Area Manager   
 

 

13   Nominations are requested to the following: 
 

a) Dublin North West Area Partnership  
b) Finglas/Cabra Drug & Alcohol Task Force 

c) Finglas Youth Resource Centre 
 

 

14   Public Domain Report, John Twamley, Public Domain Officer   
 

31 - 34 

15   Sports & Wellbeing Partnership Report   
 

35 - 38 

16   Quarter 3 Derelict Sites Section update for the North West Area Committee, Nial 
Dully, Administrative Officer and Helen McNamara, Senior Executive Officer, 
Planning & Property Development Department   
 

39 - 44 

17   Report on Maintenance Issues, Chris Ursu, Executive Engineer   
 

 

18   Presentation on New Runway at Dublin Airport, Siobhán O' Donnell, Head of 
 External Communications, Miriam Ryan, Head of Strategy, Dublin Airport 
Authority   
 

 

19   Traffic Service Requests, Status Report   
 

45 - 70 

20   Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting   
 

71 - 76 

21   Inter Authority Meeting with Fingal County Council - Agenda items requested   
 

 

Motions: 
 

 

22   Motion in the name of Councillor Cieran Perry 
 
This committee calls on the Government to deliver on their promise to protect and 
enhance the services available in local Post Offices as stated in the Programme 
for Government. A Grant Thornton report estimates that without a Government 
commitment to funding and the maintenance of contracts for services through the 
Post Office Network as many as 400 offices would close by 2017. The loss of a 
vital community service and the resulting job losses would be unacceptable.   
 

 



 
 

23   Motion in the name of Councillor David Costello 
 
That this Area Committee commends the work of all DCC Staff involved in making 
the Northwest Area a safer place this Halloween and that this is communicated to 
each member of Staff. 
 

 

Ballymun Matters 
 

 

24   Ballymun Area Office Report, Mary Taylor, Assistant Area Manager   
 

77 - 86 

25   "Growing Your Business in a Digital World", Liam Barry, Economic Development 
Officer   
 

87 - 92 

26   Presentation on Santry River Greenway Project, David O'Connor, Lecturer in 
Transport Planning at DIT Environment & Planning; Odran Reid, Planning and 
Economics Consultant and Lecturer at DIT Environment & Planning; Dr. Matthias 
Borscheid, Manager, Social Inclusion and Community Activation Programme, 
Northside Partnership Ltd.   
 

 

27   With reference to the proposed disposal of site for a substation at Shangan 
Green, Ballymun, Dublin 9   
 

93 - 94 

28   With reference to the proposed disposal of site for a substation at Shangan Drive, 
Ballymun, Dublin 9   
 

95 - 96 

29   With reference to the proposed grant of a lease of New Unit FG, plus one 
basement car space at Ballymun Civic Centre, Ballymun Main Street, Dublin 9   
 

97 - 100 

Motions: 
 

 

30   Motion in the name of Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
To ask the Manger to arrange for Double Yellow lines in Oak Park Estate Santry 
from the lights at the front of the estate to the first house on both sides of the 
road, as people park on the left hand side from the lights all the way in. 
 

 

31   Motion in the name of Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
That this area committee supports the completion of the Ballymun United Club 
House and will support them in any way they can and we will write a letter to the 
FAI and the Minister for Transport, Tourism and Sport requesting funding to finish 
this project. 
 

 

32   Motion in the name of Councillors Andrew Montague, Cathleen Carney 
Boud and Paul McAuliffe 
 
That the council CPO the properties at 8 and 10 Ferguson Road. These 
properties have been in a derelict state for many years and are held up by steel 
joists. Rather than having a negative impact on the houses around them these 
properties should be fixed up and used for housing. 
 

 

33   Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Montague 
 
That the council fix the walls and fences at the back of Pinewood Crescent to 
prevent future antisocial behaviour, hoarding of wood and dumping at the site. 
 
 

 



 
 

34   Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Montague: 
 
That as part of the new trial of bins for dog dirt, the Manager install one of these 
bins into Ellenfield Park. 
 

 

35   Motion in the name of Councillor Andrew Montague: 
 
That the manager upgrade the street lighting for Seven Oaks estate, especially at 
the pedestrian entrance from the Swords Road into the estate at the hole in the 
wall, and elsewhere in the estate where there is very poor lighting. 
 

 

36   Motion in the name of Councillor Norma Sammon: 
 
To call on Dublin City Council to investigate the possibility of a compulsory 
purchase for the derelict Bord Iascaigh Mhara site in Glasnevin. The site is an 
eyesore to residents and there is a danger of anti-social behaviour and a 
recurrence of rat infestation. 
 

 

 





NORTH WEST AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

MINUTES 
 

TUESDAY 18th October 2016 
 
 

Congratulations were extended to Councillor David Costello on the birth of his son 
Matthew. 

 
 
NWA/233/16 Minutes of the North West Area Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 20th 
  September 2016  
 

ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/234/16 Questions to the Area Manager  
 

ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/235/16 Cabra Area Office Report, Fergus Synnott, Administrative Officer  
 
  ORDER: Noted.  Clarification to be sought from the LUAS Office as 
  to what constitutes ‘exception works’ which can be carried out, outside 
  of normal working hours. 
 
NWA/236/16 Proposed extinguishment of the public right of way over the laneway to the 

 rear of 62-72 Faussagh Avenue, Dublin 7.  
 
  ORDER:   Recommend to City Council 
 
NWA/237/16 Housing Cabra/Finglas Report, Derek Healy, Housing Manager  
 
  ORDER: Noted.  More details drawings of the Rapid Build Project 
  on St.  Helena’s Drive was requested when available.  An update on 
  Prospect Hill was requested for the November NWAC Meeting. Regular 
  updates on Barry Area, Fairlawn and Barnamore to be included in the 
  Housing Report. 
 
NWA/238/16 Finglas Area Office Report, Aidan Maher, Assistant Area Manager  
 
  ORDER: Noted.   
 
NWA/239/16 Proposed disposal of a plot of land on the Finglas Road, Dublin  

 11 to the Ardmore Care Home Group Ltd.  
 

  ORDER: Recommend to City Council 
 
NWA/240/16 Finglas Festival Presentation, Fintan Walsh and Sean Mooney, Finglas 

 Festival Committee. 
 
  ORDER: Noted.  The North West Area Committee will write to the 
  Arts, Culture & Recreation SPC to have the Festival included on its  
  Agenda.  Arts Officer Ray Yeates will liaise with the Festival Committee.  

Page 1



  The Festival Committee were encouraged to apply to be considered for 
  Arts Funding for 2017.   
 
NWA/241/16 Motion in the name of Councillor David Costello  
 

 That this committee or a sub group of this committee be included in some 
 way in the process of selecting a site for a new library in Finglas. 
 
 ORDER: Report to Councillor. 

 
NWA/242/16 Motion in the name of Councillor David Costello  
 

 That the manager provides an update in relation to communications between 
 DCC area office and the Owner of the Barry Shops and that a plan be put in 
 place to CPO the site if funds become available. 
 
 ORDER: Report to Councillor.  The Barry Shops site is one of a 
 number being examined by the Area Office with the aim of identifying 
 options for remediation. 
 

NWA/243/16 Motion in the name of Councillor David Costello  
 

 That the manager requests a report from the relevant section of DCC in 
 relation to the usage of AstroTurf facilities at the Finglas Leisure Centre and 
 that consideration be given to supplementary uses by other sports. (Bowls, 
 tennis etc.). 
  
 ORDER: Report to Councillor. 

 
NWA/244/16 Update on Dublin North West Area Partnership, Michael Bowe, Chief 

 Executive. 
 
  ORDER: Noted.  A verbal update was given on the work of the  

 Dublin North West Area Partnership, followed by a Q&A session. Cllr. 
Clancy complimented the work of the Partnership and wished Michael all 
the best in the future. Cllr. Clancy also expressed the hope that the CEO 
would utilise his negotiation skills to ensure the Chairperson and a full 
complement of Directors are present at the next Board meeting. 

 
NWA/245/16 Public Domain Report, John Twamley, Public Domain Officer. 
 
  ORDER: Noted.   A number of issues were discussed.  Decorative 
  signage to be considered for St Pappins Road and Wadelai Green in the 
  context of the 2017 Discretionary Fund. 
 
NWA/246/16 Sports & Wellbeing Partnership Report  
 
  ORDER:  Noted 
 
NWA/247/16 Dublin’s Culture Connects:  The National Neighbourhood Project, Ray Yeates, 

 Arts Officer  
 
  ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/248/16 Social Housing Delivery Report  

Page 2



  ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/249/16 Traffic Service Requests, Status Report  
 
  ORDER: Noted.  A number of issues were discussed.  Neil 

 O’Donoghue will give an update of the five items previously submitted 
 by each Councillor at the November NWAC Meeting. 

 
NWA/250/16 Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting  
 
  ORDER: Noted. 
 
NWA/251/16 Motion in the name of Councillor David Costello  
 

 That this area committee would reconsider the practice of handing out flowers 
 to community groups and residents associations in favour of providing them 
 with vouchers and credit notes for local garden centres. 

ORDER: Report to Councillor.
 
NWA/252/16 Motion in the name of Councillor David Costello  
 

 That the manager provide an update in relation to the local DCC / Fingal 
 Forum that was set up over 18 months ago. 
 
 ORDER: Report to Councillor. 

 
NWA/253/16 Motion in the name of Councillor Aine Clancy  
 

 To request that the Manager invite the parking enforcement Company for 
 DCC to attend at an area meeting to respond to Councillors questions.  
 Councillors will be asked to submit their questions prior to the meeting. 

 
  ORDER: Report to Councillor. 

 
NWA/254/16 Ballymun Area Office Report, Mary Taylor, Assistant Area Manager  
 
  ORDER: An update on the Shopping Centre, the Northern Site and 

the site currently on sale for housing to be included in future reports. 
 
NWA/255/16 With reference to the proposed grant of a further licence of part of 133A 

 Slaney Road, Glasnevin, Dublin 11 to Eco Mattress Recycling Limited. 
 
  ORDER: Recommend to City Council.  A request to have the  
  licence fee abated will be made to the Development Department.  
 
NWA/256/16 Q&A on Report on Submissions from Members of the Public on the Wider 
  Area Traffic Cell Analysis of Walsh Road, Ferguson Road and Millmount  
  Avenue, Drumcondra, Neil O’Donoghue, Traffic Engineer, Eoin O'Mahony, 
  Associate Director, Transportation and Joe Seymour Director AECOM  
  Consultants.  
 
  ORDER: Noted.  A verbal update was given, followed by a Q&A  
  session. 
 

Page 3



NWA/257/16 Motion in the name of Councillor Noeleen Reilly  
 

 That this area committee support the rising of the wall between Magenta 
 Crescent and Magenta Hall in Santry.  While the Council maintain the wall is 
 high enough, it is not stopping anti social elements climbing over it which in 
 turn is causing issues within the estates 

 
  ORDER: Report to Councillor. 
 
NWA/258/16 Motion in the name of Councillor Noeleen Reilly  
 

 That the Council immediately commence consultation with Residents in St 
 Margaret’s Traveller Community Association and Carton Estate in relation to 
 the New Northside Depot at St Margaret’s. 
 
 ORDER: Report to Councillor. 

 
NWA/259/16 Motion in the name of Councillor Greg Kelly, South Central Area  
 

 To ask the manager to urgently review Traffic Safety measures at 
 Balcurris/Balbutcher lane Junction.  There was another accident here 
 recently. 
 
 ORDER: Report to Councillor. 
 

NWA/260/16 Motion in the name of Councillor Michael MacDonncha, North Central 
  Area  
 

 That the Manager look at tree pruning at the rear of Magenta Crescent, 
 Santry.  The current situation is making is very dark for residents living along 
 this stretch. 
 
 ORDER: Report to Councillor. 

NWA/261/16 Motion in the name of Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud  
 

 That the manager explains why a previous plan to put car parking spaces on 
 the green area on Glasanaon Road, to the side of Mother of Divine Grace 
 School, at the time when the dressing rooms were to be installed there?  Can 
 a plan to install parking spaces there now be reinvigorated and also 
 considerations of parking at intermittent spots where possible along the 
 Glasanaon Road where traffic and parking is causing serious problems.  

 
  ORDER: Report to Councillor. 
 
NWA/262/16 Motion in the name of Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud  

 That the manager considers the installation of railings around the Swale area 
 at Ballygall Parade to be financed by the discretionary budget in 2017 

 
  ORDER: Report to Councillor. 

Page 4



NWA Councillors:    
 
 
ORDER: 

 Aine Clancy and Lord Mayor, Brendan Carr.
 
Consultants: Eoin O’Mahony, Associate Director and AECOM 
  Consultants. 
 
 
Others in Finglas Festival Committee, Fintan Walsh & Sean Mooney and Dublin 
Attendance:  North West Area Partnership, Michael Bowe 
 
 
 
Officials:        Dave Dinnigan, (Area Manager), Aidan Maher (Senior Executive Officer), 

Bernie Rowe (Administrative Officer - Ballymun), Donal Barron (Area 
Housing Manager – Ballymun), Catherine Quinlan (Senior Staff Officer - 
Housing), Fergus Synnott, (Administrative Officer – Cabra), Bridget 
Gilbert (Senior Staff Officer), Mary Bellew (Staff Officer), John Twamley 
(Public Domain Officer,) and Neil O’Donoghue (Traffic Engineer, NWA).  
 

 
 
 

Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
         Chairperson 
The meeting concluded at 4.50pm

Page 5





Questions to the Area Manager 
 

North West Area Committee 
 

    Meeting 15th November 2016 

 
Q.1 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
 To ask the Manager to get the footpaths outside (details supplied) repaired as they 
 are in a very poor condition. 
 
Q.2 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
 To ask the Manager to ensure that the bins in (details supplied) are regularly emptied 
 as there is some illegal dumping taking place there. 
 
Q.3 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
            To ask the Manager to ask the contractor to clean the grass up after he cuts it at 
 (details supplied) as it is going everywhere and there are dog faeces in it. 
 
Q.4 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 

To ask the Manager to prune the trees and shrubs around (details supplied) 
 
Q.5 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
 To ask the Manager if they can arrange a Dog Bin and Rubbish bin for (details 
 supplied) 
 
Q.6 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 

To ask the Manager how many families have moved out of the Temporary homeless 
 accommodation at the (details supplied) and the (details supplied) to permanent 
 accommodation 
 
Q.7 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
 To ask the Manager for an update on ramps at (details supplied) 

 
Q.8 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
            To ask the Manager for an update on the (details supplied) and if alternative funding 
 has been sourced for any of the organisations. 
 
Q.9 Councillor Noeleen Reilly 
 
            To ask the Manager for an update on phase 2 insulation for the (details supplied) and 
 to give an update on insulation for (details supplied)

Page 7



Q.10 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 

To ask the Manager to investigate the public domain area on Cappagh Drive. Can 
the Manager arrange for the footpaths, bollards and the general area to be improved 
and updated. 

 
Q.11 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 
 To ask the Manager to arrange for a full inspection of the heating system at (details 
 supplied) where the tenant has indicated that a new boiler is needed 
 
Q.12 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 

To ask the Manager to arrange for the laneway to the rear of (details supplied) to be 
cleaned please 

 
Q.13 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 

To ask the Manager to arrange for a full inspection of the roads and footpaths on 
McKee Avenue. There are many parts on this thoroughfare which are in a less than 
satisfactory state at present and there are many elderly people living on the road. 
Can the Manager arrange for a complete re-instatement in the 2017 Works 
Programme.  
 

Q.14 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 

To ask the Manager to re-instate the footpath at 25-27 St. Margarets Road where it is 
in a particularly poor condition. 

 
Q.15 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 

To ask the Manager to arrange for a speed ramp between 39 and 63 Abbotstown 
Avenue. Cars regularly speed along this section of road and there are lots of children 
living along here. 

 
Q.16 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 

To ask the Manager to arrange for an inspection of the footpaths along Mellowes 
Road. Residents have reported the poor condition of these paths for a long time but 
are consistently told the roads are in satisfactory condition when it is visibly clear that 
this is not so on many parts of the road. 

 
Q.17 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 

To ask the Manager to arrange for tree planting along the top end of Mellowes Road 
(81 onwards) where there are barely any trees in comparison to other roads in the 
area. 

 
Q.18 Councillor Anthony Connaghan 
 
            To ask the Manager to arrange for housing maintenance to call back  to (details 
 supplied) to carry out works which were due to be done within 6-8 weeks in April 
 please? New vents, installation and some other works were due to be carried out
 
 

Page 8



Q.19 Councillor Emma Murphy 
 
 To ask the Manager what work is done locally regarding the (details supplied). 
 Residents have stated that they have reported horses as they were concerned for 
 their safety & welfare but little or nothing is done. I also have had issues when 
 contacting DCC regarding the (details supplied). Can the manager detail how many 
 staff locally or across the city are dedicated to working for the (details supplied) and 
 the best way for the public and councillors to contact them.  
 
Q.20 Councillor Emma Murphy 
 
 To ask the Manager if DCC can look into the anti social behaviour taking place on 
 the green on (details supplied).  Railings were put in place but there is still anti social 
 behaviour taking place.  
 
Q.21 Councillor Emma Murphy 
 
            To ask the Manager can DCC liaise with the Gardaí regarding the ongoing anti 
 social behaviour in (details supplied). This issue is constantly raised with me as there 
 is constant anti social behaviour, motorcycles racing through the estates and open 
 drug dealing taking place. Life for residents is being made a living hell. Some of the 
 anti social behaviour is taking place in & around DCC properties according to some 
 residents. Residents have been in touch with Gardaí but there has been no change 
 in the situation, it is becoming a desperate situation.  
 
Q.22 Councillor Emma Murphy 
 

To ask the Manager to update me with the position of (details supplied) on the 
 housing list.  
 
Q.23 Councillor Emma Murphy 
 
 To ask the Manager to have the traffic issue at the new (details supplied) looked into. 
 Traffic in the morning is nearly always backed up (details supplied), the situation is 
 worse than the old railway crossing. It has been raised a number of times by 
 commuters that the main issue is the traffic warden at (details supplied).  

 
Q.24 Councillor Emma Murphy 
 

To ask the Manager can the footpath outside (details supplied), heading to the 
 junction of (details supplied) be cleaned. It gets particularly bad at the new entrance 
 to (details supplied). This section is particularly bad & overgrown with trees limiting 
 the footpath.  
 
Q.25 Councillor Emma Murphy 
 
 To ask the Manager is there an update regarding the new drainage put into (details 
 supplied) to deal with flooding which wasn't alleviating the problem. As it's coming 
 into winter the flooding will become a problem again 
 
Q.26 Councillor Emma Murphy 
 
            To ask the Manager if the footpaths in (details supplied), can be inspected and any 
 repairs carried out.  
 

Page 9



Q.27 Councillor Emma Murphy 
 
            To ask the Manager for an update regarding a pedestrian crossing at the halfway 
 house on the (details supplied).  
 
Q.28 Councillor Emma Murphy 
 

To ask the Manager for parking around (details supplied) to be monitored. There is 
heavy parking taking place here by commuters which is blocking the street and 
footpaths.  

 
Q.29 Councillor Emma Murphy 
 
 To ask the Manager if proper markings can be put in place on (details supplied) at 
 the shops for parking.  
 
Q.30 Councillor Seamas McGrattan 
 
 To ask the Manager what (details supplied) are available (details supplied) use in the 
 north west area offices, i.e., printing and desk facilities. 
 
Q.31 Councillor Seamas McGrattan 
 
 To ask the Manager to introduce traffic calming measures to prevent vehicles rat 
 running through (details supplied). 
 
Q.32 Councillor Seamas McGrattan 
 
            To ask the Manager to look at putting extra lighting around the pathways in (details 
 supplied) 
 
Q.33 Councillor Seamas McGrattan 
 

To ask the Manager to resurface the roadway on (details supplied) as it has 
 deteriorated over the years and is now in a very poor condition. 
 
Q.34 Councillor Seamas McGrattan 
 
 To ask the Manager to change the lights sequence for the pedestrian crossing 
 outside (details supplied). The current timer means the lights change constantly even 
 though no pedestrians are crossing the road 
 
Q.35 Councillor Seamas McGrattan 
 

To ask the Manager to improve the public lighting in (details supplied) playground 
 
Q.36 Councillor Seamas McGrattan 
 
 To ask the Manager to install new windows for the tenant in (details supplied) 
 
Q.37 Councillor Seamas McGrattan 
 
            To ask the Manager if the tenant in (details supplied) can be refunded some of her 
 rent money, the account is currently in credit (details supplied). 
 

Page 10



Q.38 Councillor Seamas McGrattan 
 
            To ask the Manager to contact Irish Rail to cut back the trees behind houses at 
 (details supplied) 
 
Q.39 Councillor Seamas McGrattan 
 
            To ask the Manager to consider (details supplied) for the next available unit in   
            (details supplied) 
 
Q.40 Councillor Seamas McGrattan 
 
 To ask the Manager for an update into the housing application of (details supplied) 

 
Q.41 Councillor Norma Sammon 
 
 To ask the Manager to review the safety of the cycle lane at the bottom at (details 
 supplied) as it runs onto the path coming up to the bus stop.  Is it possible to 
 introduce a “slow” sign for cyclists or warn pedestrians more clearly that the lane 
 merges.  

Q.42 Councillor Norma Sammon 
 
 To ask the Manager about the CCTV camera on (details supplied) which is static on 
 the flats. Could this be changed to a rotational camera as there have been a number 
 of break-ins on (details supplied). 
 
Q.43 Councillor Norma Sammon 
 
 To ask the Manager to paint a parking bay to reserve one space for an electric car on 
 (details supplied). There is charger on the road and is hard to access due to vehicles 
 with emissions parking in front of it. 
 
Q.44 Councillor Norma Sammon 
 
 To ask the Manager to clear the leaves in the area around (details supplied) as a 
 matter of urgency. To include this area in the weekly clean of leaves similarly to the 
 area of (details supplied) 
 
Q.45 Councillor Norma Sammon 
 
 To ask the Manager – the trees on the green at (details supplied) are very large – 
 what is the policy on cutting them back and when is this done? How big will they get?
 
Q.46 Councillor Andrew Montague 
 
 To ask the Manager will the council fix the leaking roof at (details supplied) It's been 
 leaking for nearly 2 years now. 
 
Q.47 Councillor Andrew Montague 
 

To ask the Manager to install double yellow lines on the Ballymun Road outside Our 
Lady of Victories School, to discourage parents from parking outside school during 
school drop off times. 
 

Page 11



Q.48 Councillor Andrew Montague 
 

To ask the Manager to clean the gutter at the junction of St. Pappin’s Road and Dean 
Swift Road (It’s on Dean Swift Road)? 
              

Q.49 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
 
 To ask the Manager to arrange to have a tree outside (details supplied) pruned back 
 as it is blocking light out
 
Q.50 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
 
 To ask the Manager to investigate what actions can be taken to reduce the incidence 
 of disruptive parking at (details supplied)have been parking cars that are for sale 
 along the roadside as far as (details supplied). 

 
Q.51 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
 
            To ask the Manager the steps that can be taken by the Council to reduce the 
 incidence of all day parking by students at (details supplied), especially (details 
 supplied) where it links onto (details supplied)as it severely restricts visibility at 
 corners in the estate and poses a danger to pedestrians and motorists  
 
Q.52 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
 

To ask the Manager to provide an update with respect to a (details supplied) 
 Emergency Vehicles and service vehicles entering the spur road are unable to exit 
 when vehicles are parked in the turning circle in question.  Residents are very 
 concerned that continued parking in this location is inhibiting access for emergency 
 vehicles.  
 
Q.53 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
 
 To ask the Manager to arrange for signage to be installed at the recently opened 
 entrance to the (details supplied) to indicate the recently opened entrance that is not 
 fully visible to motorists.  
 
Q.54 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
 

To ask the Manager to arrange for an investigation into the recurrent illegal dumping 
 that is taking place by the bin at bus stop no (details supplied) and to outline the 
 steps that he will take to prevent this.  
 
Q.55 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
 
 To ask the Manager to outline the Council's plans with respect to a vacant property 
 (details supplied) that is in their possession.

Q.56 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
 
            To ask the Manager to supply details of the houses that the Council recently 
 purchased in (details supplied) including the price paid for each property. 
 
 
 

Page 12



Q.57  Councillor Teresa Keegan 
 
            To ask the Manager If retirees from the (details supplied) are not being replaced by 
 the Council with new staff to outline if this will lead to reduced capacity in this service
 
Q.58 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
 

To ask the Manager outline the amount received by the Council in each of the last 
five years arising from the imposition of levies under the Derelicts Sites Act; the 
number of properties that have had a levy imposed in each of these years; and will 
he outline any activity statistics of enforcement officers that are available for each of 
these years
 

Q.59 Councillor Teresa Keegan 
 

To ask the Manager to respond to serious concerns regarding the junction of the 
Swords Road and Iveragh Road where a sensor has recently been removed making 
it exceptionally difficult and dangerous for motorists to exit Iveragh Road to travel 
south on the Swords Road and will he outline the actions that will be taken to 
address this matter.   

 
Q.60 Councillor Cieran Perry 
 
 To ask the Manager confirm the number of (details supplied) completed in the North 
 West Area in the last year, by type and address? Can he also confirm the number of 
 (details supplied) 
 
Q.61 Councillor Cieran Perry 
 
 To ask the Manager to provide an update on the application for a house extension to 
 alleviate overcrowding for (details supplied) 
 
Q.62 Councillor Cieran Perry 
 
            To ask the Manager to detail the (details supplied) in the various areas in Dublin?
 
Q.63 Councillor Cieran Perry 
 

To ask the Manager to confirm whether fines were issued to the owners of t(details 
 supplied) in the North West area in the period prior to Halloween?   
 
Q.64 Councillor Cieran Perry 
 
 To ask the Manager to confirm the timeframe for a decision on (details supplied) has 
 completed?
 
Q.65 Councillor Cieran Perry 
 

To ask the Manager to confirm whether (details supplied) have officially requested 
 Dublin City Council to take in charge the roads in (details supplied)
 
Q.66 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
 
 To ask the Manager to confirm that all conditions and requirements set out for 
 planning permission granted at (details supplied) have been met prior to works 

Page 13



 commencing there (works commenced in September). Could the manager now 
 explain what the developers have proposed in relation to drainage as was requested 
 by them in conditions 3a - flooding mitigation measures and 3b - separate 
 connections to the surface drain and foul water drainage. 
 
Q.67 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
 
 To ask the Manager to arrange for speed ramps on the side road to the side of the 
 boiler house that leads on to (details supplied) 
 
Q.68 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
 
            To ask the Manager to consider improvements to paths in (details supplied) for the 
 schedule of works 2017 
 
Q.69 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
 

To ask the Manager to arrange for a "Welcome to Wadelai" sign at the green in front 
 of the shops as requested by residents and some flowers that could be planted 
 around the sign. This would enhance the front area of the shops at Pappin’s 
 Road/Ballymun Road. 
 
Q.70 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
 
 To ask the Manager for an update on plans to refurbish the senior citizens complex 
 at (details supplied) from bedsit to 1 bed apartments. What works will be 
 commencing and when 

              
Q.71 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
 

To ask the Manager for an update on plans to refurbish the senior citizens complex 
 at (details supplied) from bedsit to 1 bed apartments. What works will be 
 commencing and when. 
 
Q.72 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
 
 To ask the Manager for an update on the instalment of a new front door and door 
 frame at (details supplied). Previous timelines given have been causing confusion as 
 the tenant was told that the door cannot be fitted until the frame is ready. 
 
Q.73 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
 
            To ask the Manager for an update on the consideration for double yellow lines to be 
 installed at (details supplied) on the bends at the green entering the estate (not the 
 corners as was mentioned by the traffic engineer) where parked cars there create a 
 blind spot for drivers exiting or entering the estate. 
 
Q.74 Councillor Cathleen Carney Boud 
 
            To ask the Manager to confirm if any lighting upgrades are being considered or 
 carried out at this time for any area in the (details supplied). Can the manager 
 confirm if (details supplied) will be considered for lighting improvements in the near 
 future? 
 
 

Page 14



Q.75 Councillor David Costello 
 

To ask the Manager to outline details of the process involved in bringing a void back 
into circulation. Giving details of when and how external contractors are used. How 
are contracts awarded to external contractors. How are works monitored? Is the 
contractor required to complete one job before starting the next? Was a tender or 
other competitive process used to select contractors? Do the area housing sections 
contract smaller contractors to carry out individual jobs.         

 
Q.76 Councillor David Costello 
 

To ask the Manager to provide an update in relation to the Dunsink Driveway 
Extensions.  

 
Q.77 Councillor David Costello 
 

 To ask the Manager to provide an update in relation to the progress of the PPP 
development in Scribblestown. 
 

Q.78 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
 
 To ask the Manager (details supplied) is overflowing again, can the waste 
 Department ensure it is on their route for collection. 
 
Q.79 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
 
 To ask the Manager (details supplied) on the self service portal is not visible and the 
 submitter cannot see an update.  
 
Q.80 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
 
            To ask the Manager to clean the lane way behind (details supplied) which is 
 accessible behind the Comet pub and has a lot of waste material in it.  
 
Q.81 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
 

To ask the Manager to replace the broken sections of pavement on (details supplied) 

Q.82 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
 
 To ask the Manager update me on the plans to make the roundabout on (details 
 supplied) more pedestrian friendly  
 
Q.83 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
 

To ask the Manager (details supplied) who is housing her daughter in an extension in 
 the garden, who has limited financial means to do any further work and who does not 
 want to force her daughter into emergency accommodation.   
 
Q.84 Councillor Paul McAuliffe 
 
 To ask the Manager can street cleaning be carried out on (details supplied) 
 particularly around the maisonettes. Can we also arrange for parks to cut an 
 overgrown tree which is blocking the lane way behind the maisonettes.  

 

Page 15





 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2016 
 

Item No: 3 

Cabra Area Office Report 

 
 
Blackhorse Avenue – Section 2, Road Improvement Scheme  
An update on progress to date was circulated to residents in October. 
 
Chapel Crescent 
We have engaged Westside Engineering to install a railing on top of the existing boundary 
wall as a safety measure to prevent children in particular from scaling the wall or otherwise 
putting themselves at risk .This is in response to resident’s requests and subsequent 
investigation. 
 
Dalymount Park Project 
As Shelbourne FC has now agreed to share Dalymount with Bohemians, the redevelopment 
project can now be progressed. A Project Steering Group team involving officials from Dublin 
City Council, Bohemians, FAI and Shelbourne has been set up. The Area Office will be 
represented by Aidan Maher and Fergus Synnott. 
 
The purpose of the Steering Group is as follows: 
 To provide and assist Dublin City Council and the Council’s appointed design team in 

the designs plans of Dalymount Park 
 To encourage and strengthen a working and functioning relationship between Dublin 

City Council, Bohemian FC, Shelbourne FC and the local community. 
 To work towards the goal of having a top class municipal stadium managed and owned 

by Dublin City Council and shared between Bohemians FC, Shelbourne FC and the 
wider local community. 

 
DCC are currently in the process of compiling tendering documents for a design team for the 
project, with the project being completed in 2020 at the earliest. However, no funding stream 
has yet been identified. 
 
The DCC project leader, Don Daly, has been invited to present an overview and update to 
the December NWAC meeting. 
 
Faussagh Upgrade Project 
A topographical survey of the pavement along Faussagh Avenue between Quarry Road and 
Ratoath Road has been completed.  The work has been undertaken on behalf of the Roads 
Department to determine the location and extent of underground services in advance of 
upgrade measures, such as the installation of tree pits. Parks Services are working on a 
design proposal for the scheme which will be submitted to the parish priest for consideration 
by the Parish Council on the section of land at the front of the church grounds. 

Page 17



 
The target date for the completion of the main works is summer 2017. 
 
Dublin City Council is providing support to the Gardai to ensure that the cctv camera on the 
road is operating effectively. 
 
Liam Whelan Bridge  
I have reported the recent graffiti to the LUAS Liaison Officer who has promised to have it 
removed as soon as possible. 
 
LUAS 
Newsletter with updates on progress recently circulated to residents. 
 
Mt Bernard Park 
The Children’s Play Officer, Debbie Clarke, held a meeting in the Cabra Office on the 10th 
October to outline plans for the further development of the children’s play area to parents. 
She is now following up on issues raised and will hold a further meeting with parents, which 
is yet to be scheduled. 
 
Ormond Print premises 
Derelict Sites Section have inspected this site and judged it as not warranting action under 
the Derelict Sites Act. 
 
Phibsborough Local Environment Improvement Plan 
A nomination is sought from amongst councillors to represent the North West Area on the 
Implementation Group which is being established. It will also include a representative from 
Central Area. 
 
Shandon Gardens canal bank wall 
We are still awaiting a response from Waterways Ireland on the request for co-funding of the 
repairs and reinstatement. 
 
Tolka Valley Greenway Park 
Unfortunately there have been a number of antisocial incidents that have impinged upon 
local residents in Rathborne, and Pelletstown. I am arranging a meeting with Cabra Gardai 
and the Parks Supervisor to see how security can be improved.  Parks Section has 
introduced measures to restrict motor bikes in the park. 

 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY & SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT 
 

Halloween 
Halloween was relatively quiet in the Cabra Area due to the co-operation of residents, the 
efforts of the Public Domain and Housing Maintenance crews removing bonfire materials in 
advance, and also the support of the Gardai. The outstanding bonfire materials were  
removed from locations at Ashington, Killala and Dunard after they had been allowed to cool. 
Alternative activities were very successful, particularly the Halloween Night Event in Naomh 
Fionnbarra.  A mini festival was held in Naomh Fionnbarra G.A.A. Club on Halloween night 
with a “Haunted House” and disco catering for over 1,000 people. Cabra Mens Group 
contributed considerably in the management of the entire evening. 
 
St. Eithne`s Ring Residents and Ventry Park Residents organised similar events in their 
respective areas. 

Page 18



 
All events were supported by the City Council. 
 
 
 
Cabra Drive 
A new residents association has formed recently in Cabra Drive as a result of the overall 
Pride Of Place activities. 
 
Phibsborough / Glasnevin. 
Phibsborough Tidy Towns are continuing with their ongoing activities and in particular the 
Royal Canal Bank Residents Group’s local environmental improvements which cover an 
area from the Royal Canal to Phibsborough Library. 
 
Christmas Events. 
Arrangements are being put in place to facilitate the Lighting of Christmas Trees in Cabra. 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Aidan Maher 
Assistant Area Manager 
 
 
  

Page 19





 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2016 
 

Item No: 5 

 

Housing Matters: Cabra-Finglas Report Jan-Nov 2016 
 
 
Estate Management 

 FINGLAS CABRA 

No of Anti social complaints per 1997 act   Drug Related 5 2 

No of Anti social complaints per 1997 act   Not Drug Related 3 2 

No of other Complaints 19 17 

Total Complaints 27 21 

 

No of Anti Social Interviews per 1997 act 2 1 

No of Other Interviews 17 20 

Total Interviews 19 21 

 

No of Requests for mediation 3 2 

No of Complaints referred to central unit for Action 2 0 

No of Section 20 Evictions 0 0 

No of excluding Orders applied for by Tenant 0 0 

No of Excluding orders applied for by DCC 0 0 

No of surrender of Tenancies due to Anti Social Behaviour 0 0 

No of Notice to Quits sent to Central Unit 0 0 

No of Court Orders Granted 0 0 

No of Appeals / Judicial Reviews Challenges 0 0 

No of Warrants executed (Evictions) 0 0 

 

Page 21



Housing Allocations                                                                            

 

 

Senior Citizens Allocations                                                                 

 

Category Housing Transfers 

 FINGLAS CABRA FINGLAS CABRA 

Bands 2 & 3 7 1 0 2 

Medical 0 1 0 0 

Welfare 2 1 0 1 

Homeless 3 2 0 0 

Travellers 1 1 0 0 

De-tenanting 0 0 0 1 

Maintenance Grds 0 0 0 0 

Surrendering Larger 0 0 0 0 

Unable to afford 0 0 0 0 

Total 13 6 0 4 

Category Housing Transfers 

 FINGLAS CABRA FINGLAS CABRA 

Bands 2 & 3 6 1 10 0 

Medical 5 1 1 0 

Welfare 2 3 0 1 

Homeless 5 3 0 0 

Travellers 0 0 0 0 

De-tenanting 0 0 1 1 

Maintenance Grds 0 0 0 0 

Surrendering Larger 0 0 1 0 

Unable to afford 0 0 0 0 

Financial 

Contribution 

0 0 0 0 

Total 18 8 13 2 

Page 22



Voids Report 

 

There are currently 11 vacant housing units in the Finglas Area 

Address Type of unit Date of vacancy Remarks 

15 Barnamore Grove House 24/06/2016 Works in progress 

6 Barry Drive House 24/08/2016 Choice Base Letting 

10 Barry Close House 01/09/2016 Choice Base Letting 

12 Casement Park House 09/08/2016 On offer 

225 McKee Avenue House 17/05/2016 On offer 

59 Mellowes Avenue House 30/01/2015 On offer 

61 Ratoath Avenue House 27/06/2016 * 

63 Ratoath Avenue House 26/07/2016 * 

825 Ratoath Road House 03/10/2016 Works in progress 

41 Sycamore Road House 25/07/2016 Works in progress 

3 Wellmount Court House 13/10/2016 Works in progress 

  

* As 61 & 63 Ratoath Avenue are vacant the Local Office is looking at ways to redesign the 
entrances to both these houses to alleviate anti-social behaviour and to improve the 
appearance of the properties. 
 
 

There are currently 7 vacant housing units in the Cabra Area 

Address Type of unit Date of vacancy Remarks 

10 Chancel Mews Riverston 
Abbey 

House 09/09/2016 Works in progress 

153 Dingle Road House 28/09/2016 On offer 

131 Killala Road House 01/08/2016 On offer 

108 Quarry Road House 04/05/2016  On offer 

66 Saint Attracta Road House 28/09/2016 Works in progress 

33 Villa Park Gardens House 25/07/2016  Detenanting (O’Devaney Gardens) 

5 Villa Park Drive House 18/08/2016 Works in progress 

 

 

 

Page 23



There are currently 13 vacant senior citizens units in the Finglas area 

Address Type of 

Unit 

Date of 

vacancy 

Remarks 

6 Brookville Court 1 bed 20/09/2016 Works in progress 

3 Clareville Court 1 bed 20/10/2016 Works in progress 

12 Clareville Court 1 bed 08/06/2016 Works in progress 

33 Clareville Court Bedsit 12/09/2016 Works in progress 

41 Clareville Court Bedsit 28/06/2016 Works in progress 

50 Clareville Court 1 bed 22/06/2016 Works in progress 

59 Clareville Court 1 bed 07/04/2016 On offer 

70 Clareville Court 1 bed 26/08/2016 Works in progress 

11 Kilshane Court 2 bed 09/05/2016 On offer 

3 Mellowes Court Bedsit 02/09/2016 Works in progress 

42 Mellowes Court Bedsit 26/09/2016 On offer 

58 Mellowes Court 1 bed 06/09/2016 On offer 

1 Merville Court 1 bed 10/07/2016 On offer 

 

 

There are currently 8 vacant senior citizens units in the Cabra area 

Address Type of Unit Date of vacancy Remarks 

4 Convent View Crescent 
 

Bedsit 29/09/2016 Works in progress 

19 Convent View Cres 
 

Bedsit 09/06/2016 Works in progress 

35 Convent View Cres 
 

Bedsit 18/08/2016 Works in progress 

36 Convent View Cres 
 

Bedsit 02/10/2016 Works in progress 

48 Dunard Court 
 

Bedsit 02/08/2015 On offer 

20 McKee Court 1 bed 24/10/2016 Works in progress 
 

20 Rowan Hamilton Court 
 

1 bed 11/05/2016 On offer 

22 Rowan Hamilton Court 
 

1 bed 4/09/2016 On offer 

 

125 Carnlough Road 

This House has been handed over to the Housing Maintenance Section to carry out the 
necessary works in order to return it to the housing stock for letting. 

 

 

Page 24



Choice Base Letting 
6 Barry Drive and 10 Barry Close will be advertised on Dublin City Council’s website under 
the Choice Base Letting Scheme between 14th November and 25th November. 
 

Rents Update 
The Finglas Area Office continues to provide a rent assessment service for tenants living in 
the Finglas and Cabra areas.   
 
 

 
Finglas Rent Assessment Update 

Assessments 119 

Permission To Resides 4 

Refunds 3 

 
 
Barry Area 
The Local Area Office, the Anti-Social Policy Unit, Dublin City Council’s legal representative 
and the Finglas Drug Sergeant have arranged a meeting this month with a view to moving 
forward with initiating legal proceedings for the recovery of the dwelling that is causing 
serious problems in the Barry area. 
 
Fairlawn Park 
Kelly Blocks were installed at 9 Fairlawn Park to stop individuals using it as a walkway 
between Prospect Hill and Fairlawn. This has not worked as more of the 9” thick wall was 
dismantled to gain access. 
 
This property has been registered with the Derelicts Sites Section and contact has been 
made with the Management Company dealing with this property with a view to resolving the 
issue. 
 
Barnamore Park 
There are still issues of anti-social behaviour around 25 and 25A Barnamore Park, 
particularly 25A which is constantly being dumped in and was recently set on fire.  
 
25A Barnamore Park is registered with the Derelict Sites Section and every effort is being 
made to contact the owner. 
 
25 Barnamore Park is not being registered with the Derelict Sites Section, as it does not 
meet the criteria at present. However, it is being monitored and will be reviewed. 
 
 
Scribblestown Flat Roofs 
Approval has been granted for the ten remaining flat roofs to be completed in the 
Scribblestown development. Works is due to commence within ten days. 
 
 
Saint Finbarr’s Court. 
The review of the proposed apartment size for the units in St. Finbarr’s Court is ongoing and 
is expected to be completed in the next two weeks. Subject to a further review with the 
planner the Part 8 process is due to be then launched.   
 

Page 25



There are five tenants left in Block 2 St. Finbarr’s Court. Alternative accommodation has 
been identified for four tenants and they will be relocated as soon as the repair works have 
been completed. A suitable vacancy is being sought for the remaining tenant. 
 
 
Rapid Housing - St Helena’s Drive Update  
ABM Construction has started work on the construction of 39 houses at St. Helena’s Drive.  
 
One house has been dropped from the plan to allow the extension of back gardens of house 
numbers 11 to 17 Gortmore Drive.  
 
The construction of the 39 houses will take approximately 32 weeks.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Aidan Maher 
Assistant Area Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2016 
 

Item No: 6 

Finglas Area Office Report 

Update on Kildonan Lands Project 
Ed Flanagan’s interim report on the public consultation process is being examined. No 
decision has been taken yet on whether any additional surveys are required to capture the 
views of additional residents in the adjoining streets.  
 
Due to the lengthy period required by the consultation process the timetable for completion 
of the Brady Shipman Martin (BSM) masterplan report has been extended. 
 
Arising from a recent incident WFTRA have decided to withdraw from all engagement with 
Dublin City Council, the Dublin Regional Homeless Executive and the various statutory 
agencies and service providers in the Abigail Centre. Pending resolution of this hiatus no 
date has been fixed yet for the next meeting of the Development Group. However, a meeting 
with WFTRA and the Deputy Chief Executive will be held soon. It will be an open Agenda. I 
will be in attendance. 
 
 

Community Grants Scheme 2017 
Applications under Dublin City Council Community Grant Scheme closed on Friday 28th 
October.  Community and Social Development Staff assisted a number of groups with 
completing their applications and will begin processing grants shortly with a view to 
presenting a draft list of recommendations to Councillors in early January 2017. 
 
     
Finglas Halloween Festival 2016 
The Finglas Halloween Festival “Finglas Fright Night,” took place in the Finglas Civic Centre 
on Monday 31st October from 6.00pm to 9.00pm. The numbers attending continues to grow 
each year. People travelled from many parts of the city to attend the event.  
 
There was a wide variety of entertainment for families to enjoy on the night, from carnival 
rides, bouncy castles, old fashioned game stalls, maze of misery, a spooky graveyard, 
magician, face painting, fancy dress competition, food stalls, fireworks display and the main 
music stage.   
 

Page 27



The event was advertised with flyers, and advertising boards were posted throughout the 
Finglas area. We decided not to use the festival website: instead, we focused on social 
media to help with the promotion of the festival. The festival now has a Facebook page and 
a Twitter account. Both accounts were very active with over 7,000 hits on the Facebook 
page alone. The main Dublin City Council social networking pages, including our Fire 
Brigade pages, also promoted the festival.  
 
The event is managed by the Community and Social Development team with the assistance 
of staff in the area office, leisure centre and parks department. The event management, 
including health and safety was contracted to Cuckoo Event Management. The construction 
and derig of the site was also contracted out. Civil Defence and Order of Malta attended the 
event. An Garda Síochána attended and, with the assistance of the security company, 
monitored the crowds throughout the festival site.  
 
The Finglas Youth Resource Centre hosted the refreshment area for volunteers. They also 
hosted the maze of misery, which included some of their young people performing in the 
maze. The Centre had a six week arts programme leading up to the festival which 
culminated in their interactive graveyard on the night itself. The youth centre also managed 
the stage entertainment. The majority of entertainment on the night was performed by local 
young people. It is very encouraging that the youth centre reported an increase in young 
people wanting to be involved in the festival.   
 
Each year Dublin City Council invites local community groups to help with ticket sales for all 
the attractions. Ticket sales go towards the groups fund raising efforts. It should be noted 
that the success of the Halloween Festival would not happen without the input of so many 
dedicated volunteers. 
 
Community / Voluntary Groups and Organisations:  

 Ballygall Order Of Malta 

 Finglas Suicide Network 

 Meeting Place Club 

 Erin’s Isle GAA Club 

 Over 55’s Happy Ramblers Group 

 Finglas Concert and Marching Band 

 Finglas Tidy Towns 

 Rivermount Summer Project 

 Finglas West Summer Project 

 Lakeglen Residents Association 

 The Finglas Centre 

 Citizens Information Centre 

 Finglas No Name Club 

 

  

Page 28

http://www.google.ie/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&sqi=2&ved=0ahUKEwivjdbBqorQAhUMBsAKHWBYBD0QFgghMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.garda.ie%2F&usg=AFQjCNEcmaiqYPkLnkkdp0MZqT-lBP8neg&bvm=bv.137132246,d.ZGg


 
Dublin City Comhairle na nÓg AGM  
The Dublin City Comhairle na nÓg AGM has been rescheduled and will now take place on 
Friday 18th November in Croke Park from 9.30am – 2.30pm.  
Schools and Youth Services in the area were invited to nominate two young people to attend 
the AGM - ideally young people from 6th Class to 5th year. 
 
Young people in attendance who wish to can run for election can do so at the AGM. 
Successful candidates are elected for a 2 year term.   
 
The AGM will also involve discussion on the three most popular topics identified by young 
people, with a final vote on the topic which attendees feel the Comhairle should work on 
during the year ahead.  
 
Age Friendly Cities Older Person’s Council 
North West Area Older Person’s Council continue to meet on a regular basis.  A number of 
council members have attended the following conventions: 

 25th and 26th October- Increasing Capacity for Age Friendly Environments in Europe 
in the Grand Hotel. 

 3rd and 4th November- the National Convention for Older People’s Councils in the 
Cavan Crystal Hotel. 

 
The next meeting of the council will take place on Wednesday 23rd November 2016 in The 
Conference Room, Finglas Area Office. 
 
Finglas Older Persons Expo 
We are organisating a Finglas Older Persons Expo. This event will take place on Monday 
28th November from 2p.m - 5p.m. in WFTRA Hall Mellowes Road, Finglas, Dublin 11. 
 
The Expo will be an opportunity for groups in attendance to promote themselves, encourage 
new membership and share information with people who attend from the community. 
 
Community Groups in the area have been contacted and must register by 5p.m.on Monday 
14th November 2016 to take part in this event. A minimum number of groups must register in 
order for this event to take place. 
 
The event will then be advertised in the Finglas area for the wider community to attend. 
 
Christmas Remembrance/Celebration 2016  
We are in the process of organising this year’s Christmas remembrance in conjunction with 
the Positive Wellness Group. 
 
The event will again take place in the Finglas Civic Complex beside the Finglas Sport and 
Fitness Centre. Members of the public will have an opportunity to remember loved ones who 
have passed away. Event details will be made available in the coming weeks. 

Aidan Maher 
Assistant Area Manager 

Page 29





 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2016 
 

Item No: 14 

 
North West Area Complaints received via CRM  
 
The CRM is the system used by DCC Customer Services Centre and all departments to log 
and track complaints. Please see details below of the number of complaints received / 
investigated and closed by the North West Area Office from 1st October to 31st October. 
 

Type of Complaint 
Count of 
Incidents 

Abandoned Bicycles or Trolleys 1  
 

Bonfire Materials 66  
 

Community Cleanups 16  
 

Abandoned Vehicle Inspection 1  
 

Illegal Dumping 94  
 

Footpath Issue 1  
 

Roads 1  
 

Pothole 1  
 

Public Litter Bin Maintenance 2  
 

Report Dead Animal 3  
 

Report Dog Fouling DCC 1  
 

Report Graffiti 6  
 

Report Litter Offence 3  
 

Sweep Your Street 4  
 

Tree Maintenance 7 

Weed Control 1 

  208 
 
 
It is important to note that a significant number of additional complaints were also 
investigated as all area staff pick up complaints when carrying out daily duties but due to 
lack of resources all complaints are not logged. 
 
 
 

Page 31



 
Public Domain Halloween Report 
 
Preparations and activities prior to Halloween: 
 

 Approximately 1800 Information Leaflets outlining the dangers of Bonfires and listing 
DCC contact details were distributed to householders by Public Domain and Housing 
Staff in the vicinity of locations where bonfires are usually held. 

 Businesses in the industrial estates in the NWA visited by a Litter Warden and a 
member of the Public Domain team, given a leaflet and advised on the need to 
secure flammables in the weeks prior to Halloween. 

 Regular inspections of voids and green areas were conducted by Public Domain 
Staff throughout the NWA to check for the presence of stockpiling. 

 Co-ordinating Conferences were convened with the Gardai in the Finglas/Cabra and 
Ballymun areas and attended by DCC Public Domain, Waste Management, Housing 
and Parks Staff. This ensured a high level of communication and co-operation in the 
lead up to and over the Halloween period. 

 Flammables were collected by Waste Management, Parks and Public Domain Crews 
as located or reported. 

 Approximately 250 tyres, 150 pallets and large quantities of wood were removed 
prior to the Halloween weekend. 

 Additional grab lorries were provided through DCC Parks for use in the NWA over the 
Halloween Period. 

Actions over the Halloween Weekend: 
 

 In co-operation with the Gardai, Waste Management and Parks, stock piles, including 
an estimated 350 tyres, over 400 pallets and large quantities of wood were removed 
from over 40 locations over the three days of the Halloween weekend.  In all, this 
constituted nine grab trucks and several trailer loads of bonfire materials removed 
throughout the NWA over the three days. 

 The assistance of the Gardai was required at many locations, including five locations 
where Public Order Personnel were deployed to protect crews in the removal of stock 
piles or built bonfires.     

 The Halloween Fright Night Festival in Finglas and the Ballymun Otherworld 
Festivals were very successful in diverting young people from bonfires and 
contributed to reducing the number of fires in the area. 

 The NWA Public Domain Office was staffed from 8am-5pm from 29th – 31st Oct.  This 
was of particular benefit on Halloween afternoon as calls from members of the public 
reporting bonfire material were passed to crews and several stock piles removed as 
a result.  In addition, Public Domain staff worked from 5.30am on 31st Oct, directing 
Parks staff to locations containing stock piles for removal. 

Post Halloween clean ups 

 Clean ups are ongoing in the NWA in conjunction with DCC Waste Management 
Parks and Housing.  
 
 

Page 32



 

 

 

Leaf Removal 

Now that Halloween is over the emphasis has moved on to dealing with the annual leaf fall 
throughout the area. To achieve this DCC Waste Management have provided personnel 
dedicated to the removal of leaves, in particular on main roads. The Public Domain Team 
are also providing bags and equipment to groups and individuals to enable them to run leaf 
clean up events in their areas and are organising for bags of leaves to be collected.   
 
The Public Domain Team can be contacted on 01-222 5412 / 6754 / 5407 / 5400, email 
nwa.publicdomain@dublincity.ie or phone DCC Customer Services on 01-2222222. 
 
 
City Neighbourhoods Schools Awards 
A Reception will be held on Friday 2nd December in the Oak Room, at the Mansion House, to 
announce the winners of the Dublin City Neighbourhoods Schools Awards 2016.  Schools 
who have qualified from the area competitions held earlier this year are in contention for 
prizes. The NWA is well represented this year with Saint Brigid’s GNS Glasnevin coming first 
in the NWA and Holy Spirit GNS Ballymun and St Canice’s GNS Finglas sharing joint 
second place.  The best of luck to our NWA participants at the Mansion House awards. 
 
Laneway Closed on Faussagh Avenue 
Gates were recently installed to close the laneway adjacent to 54 Faussagh Avenue. This 
location has long been subject to illegal dumping and anti social behaviour and the public 
right of way was extinguished a number of years ago.  It is anticipated that the presence of 
the gates will alleviate the problem for businesses with entrances onto the lane and for 
residents of adjoining dwellings. 
 
Finglas Village 1916 Memorial Unveiled 
The Finglas Village 1916 Memorial was unveiled by the Lord Mayor Brendan Carr on 
Saturday 12th November 2016 at an event held on site at The Seamus Ennis Road in Finglas 
Village. The monument, originally proposed by the Finglas Village Renewal Partnership in 
2015 to mark the 100th anniversary of the Rising, was funded by the Partnership in 
cooperation with DCC and local business and community groups.  The monument is 
constructed from sea grey polished marble and contains the National Flag and the flag of the 

Bonfire stockpiles being removed over the recent Halloween weekend in the Finglas 
area 

Page 33

mailto:nwa.publicdomain@dublincity.ie


main organisations who took part in The Rising, The Irish Volunteers, Cumann Na Mban and 
The Irish Citizen Army.  Seven trees will be planted shortly by DCC Parks in the area behind 
the monument to commemorate the seven signatories of the Proclamation.  The presence of 
the monument at a high profile location in the village will ensure that the events of the 1916 
Rising and their importance in the foundation of the state will continue to be marked in years 
to come in the Finglas Area. 
 
                        
 

                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JOHN TWAMLEY 
PUBLIC DOMAIN OFFICER 

The site of the Finglas Village 1916 Memorial to be unveiled on Saturday 12th 
November 

Page 34



 
 
 
The Chairman and Members of     
North West Area Committee.     
 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2016 
 

Item No: 15 

Sports and Wellbeing Partnership Report 

 

 Marathon Kids is a citywide running programme developed to encourage 6th class 
pupils to embrace healthy, active lifestyles. The aim of the programme is to inspire 
children to run; and over eight weeks accumulate the equivalent distance of a 
Marathon – 26.2 miles!  Resource booklets have been given to all pupils to assist 
with motivation and learning. 

 
DCC Sport & Wellbeing Partnership have teamed up with Fingal County Council to 
build on the very successful programme rolled out by Fingal in 2015, which saw 22 
primary schools and over 600 kids take part in this unique event. The 2016 
programme commenced in September (with many schools from the NWA taking part) 
and will climax in a ‘final mile’ event and celebration to be held in the National Sports 
Campus, Abbotstown, on Sunday November 20th. 
 

 After-School Fencing Programme (Primary)     
This is a 3-week programme involving pupils aged 8-10 years from a local DEIS 
School. Young people participating on the programme have been referred by the 
Home School Liaison Officer as requiring additional supports. The programme 
commenced on Thursday 10th November and will involve participants taking part in a 
fencing programme. As part of this programme they will learn the basic skills and 
etiquette of fencing. The programme is delivered in partnership between the primary 
school, parents, Home School Liaison, DCSWP Sports Officer and fencing coach. 
 

 Late Night League  
The Late Night League is a very successful citywide initiative that is delivered in 
partnership between the FAI, DCSWP and An Garda Síochána. This is a 4-week 
programme involving young males from the local area.  The programme will begin on 
Friday 18th November in Aughrim Street Sports Complex from 7-10pm.  The aim is to 
give participants the chance to socialise with their peers on a Friday night in a safe 
and fun environment. The programme will culminate with a citywide final in Irishtown 
stadium on Friday 9th December. 
 

 Christmas Activities (Cabra) 
A programme of Christmas activities will be organised in conjunction with the Local 
Youth Service & Community Development Project. Activities will take place in the 
local GAA club, the youth service and also off-site such as trips to Kiltiernan Ski Club, 
Ice Skating and Stadium Tours etc. 

Page 35



 

 Older Adult Programmes  
Go for Life – This programme takes place every Monday from 1-2pm in Cabra 
Parkside Community & Sports Complex.  The aim is to promote physical activity and 
encourage social support among the participants. The programme involves three 
throwing games where participants throw, lob and bowl items towards a target.   
The sessions are guided by the participants in terms of competitiveness. Challenge 
matches against other groups across the city are planned.   
 
Walking Football – This programme is delivered every Tuesday from 11-1pm in 
Cabra Parkside Community & Sports Complex. The session is delivered in 
partnership with Cabra Development Programme and the FAI. The programme is 
open to men aged 55 years and older. It involves the same rules as ordinary soccer 
except players are not allowed to run. The aim of the programme is to provide an 
opportunity for men to take part in physical activity in a fun, friendly and social 
setting.   
 

 Access Programmes (Boys & Girls) 
 Badminton  Monday 4-5pm Cabra Parkside Community & Sports Complex - 8yrs+ 
 Soccer Tuesday 3-4pm Cabra Parkside Community & Sports Complex - 8yrs+ 
 Basketball Tuesday 4-5pm Cabra Parkside Community & Sports Complex - 13yrs+ 

All sessions delivered by DCSWP Sports Officer Maz Reilly  
 
 Rugby Thursday 3.30-4.30pm Cabra Parkside Community & Sports Complex -10yrs+ 

Delivered by DCSWP/Leinster Development Officer Stephen Maher 
 

 Couch to Park Run: Meet and train running programme every Tuesday morning in 
Poppintree Park from 10am to 11am. All levels welcome; leading to 5k Ballymun 
Parkrun on Saturday December 24th.  
 

 Ballymun Older Adults Sports Day: Poppintree Sports & Community Centre, 
Friday December 9th, 11am -3pm (includes a variety of sports) 
 

 Outdoor Activities Programme: Weekly outdoor pursuits programme throughout 
November for young people in the Poppintree/Ballymun area. Activities include 
mountain biking, kayaking and rafting. 

 

 Boccia with Whitehall Stroke Support Group: DCSWP Sports Officer will be 
delivering some Boccia sessions over the course of 6 weeks beginning on November 
17th. It is hoped to have a tournament on the final day. 
 

 Multi-Sport After School Programme with St. Helena Resource Centre:  
- Activities include games which incorporate movement, balance, co-ordination and  
  agility skills 
- This programme is for boys and girls in the 10-12 age category  
- The pupils are part of the St. Helena Resource Centre After School Programme 
- 10 children participate in each session  
- The session takes place each Tuesday and Thursday at St Malachys B.N.S. from  
  3-4pm  
- The remaining sessions for November/December are November 22nd, November   
24th, December 6th and December 8th. 
 

 Mini Games Programme with Finglas Youth Resource Centre After-School Project: 
- Activities include uni-hockey, volleyball, olympic handball and soccer.  

Page 36



- This programme is boys and girls in the 10-12 age category 
- The children are part of the Finglas Youth Resource Centre After-School Project.  
- The children attend St. Canice’s B.N.S. and St. Joseph’s G.N.S.  
- 8-10 children participate at each session. 
- The venue is the hall in the Finglas Youth Resource Centre (Friday’s 3pm – 4pm) 
- Remaining dates are November 18th, 25th and December 2nd. 

 

 Primary Schools Cross Country Athletics Event: 

- This event for schools in the Finglas area is taking place at Mellowes Park on 
Tuesday November 15th from 10am-12pm. 

- There are races for boys and girls in 3rd, 4th, 5th & 6th classes.  
- Eight primary schools have registered for this event so overall 150 pupils should 

be participating in the races. 
- This is the fourth year of this event. 

 

 Cabra Parkside Community Sports Complex will host a Christmas Market on 
Sunday November 20th. There will be amazing stalls, vintage decorations, Christmas 
hampers, clothing, frames, candles, toys, gift sets and lots more. 
 

 The Ballymun/Finglas Project Futsal Hub will be rolling out the following in the 

upcoming weeks: 

- FAI PDP2 / Kickstart 2 

- FAI 4v4 SSG workshop 

- FAI 7v7 SSG workshop 

- FAI Strength and Conditioning workshop 

- Show Racism the Red Card; ‘train the trainer’ workshop 

- Students will start doing school coaching sessions in Finglas and Ballymun 

Outside the hub we have the following upcoming: 
- PDP 1 / Kickstart 1 course at the Leisure Point on Saturday 19th November 

 

 The Boxing Development Officer will commence Start-Box Gold sessions this month. 
The Gold Programmes consist of participants who showed promise through their Bronze 
and Silver Sessions and have consented to increased intensity, by partaking in 
schooled-spars etc. 

 
There are a limited number of students involved (drawn from all DCC areas) who will 
commence training at the high performance gym. Depending on their response, they will be 
matched up accordingly with a view to partaking in the Showcase Finals, which take place in 
December. 

 
 

Cricket Development Officer Update 

 School Visits - we will be visiting the following schools in this area during the 

November/December period:  

1. St Fergal's NS Finglas (Thursday’s 11.00am-12.30pm) 

2. St Kevin’s BNS Finglas (Thursday’s 1.00pm -2.30pm) 

 

 There will also be an inter-schools cricket blitz between the classes in St Fergal’s NS 
on Tuesday the 22nd of November at 11.00am- 12.30pm in the schoolyard. 

 

 Table Cricket (cricket designed for physically challenged participants) will be starting 
with a group on Mondays from 9.30am-10.30am in Eve Airdnua North Road, 

Page 37



Finglas. On the 12th of December we hope to have a competitive match between this 
group and the John of Gods Program. (Venue TBC) 

 
 
Contact details 
 
Antonia Martin, Manager, Sports Officers: antonia.martin@ dublincity.ie    
Maz Reilly, Sports Officer: marielouise.reilly@dublincity.ie  
Niall Mc Donald, Sports Officer: niall.mcdonald@dublincity.ie  
John McDonald, Sports Officer: john.mcdonald@dublincity.ie  
Eileen Gleeson, Sports Officer: eileenb.gleeson@dublincity.ie  
Jamie Wilson, FAI Soccer: jamie.wilson@fai.ie  
Paul Whelan, FAI Soccer: paul.whelan@fai.ie  
Oisin Fagan, Boxing: oisinfagan@gmail.com  
Fintan McAllister, Cricket: fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie  
Stephen Maher, Rugby: stephen.maher@leinsterrugby.ie  
 
 

Report by 
Alan Morrin 
 

Page 38

mailto:marielouise.reilly@dublincity.ie
mailto:niall.mcdonald@dublincity.ie
mailto:john.mcdonald@dublincity.ie
mailto:eileenb.gleeson@dublincity.ie
mailto:jamie.wilson@fai.ie
mailto:paul.whelan@fai.ie
mailto:oisinfagan@gmail.com
mailto:fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie
mailto:stephen.maher@leinsterrugby.ie


 
 
The Chairman and Members of       Planning & Property Development Department 
North West Area Committee.      An Roinn Pleanála & Forbairt Maoine   

 

Meeting: 15th November 2016  
 
 

Item No: 16 

 
DERELICT SITES REPORT  

 
I attach Quarter 3 Derelict Sites Section update for the North West Area Committee.  

 

 

Please contact the Derelict Sites Section, details below, for more detailed information on any 

of the sites listed. 

derelictsites@dublincity.ie  

Nial Dully, Bernie Mills tel 222 3941, 2330 
Fiona Devlin tel 222 3381, Eoin Lawlor tel 222 3385, Laura McCabe  tel 222 3015 
 
 
 
 

P. Clegg      
Executive Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39

mailto:derelictsites@dublincity.ie


Derelict Sites Update 

 
 

Location 
Actions taken under the Derelict Sites Act, 1990 in Quarter 3 

- 2016 

Annamoe Terrace, 11, 
Dublin 7. 

 This site was inspected on 18
th
 August, 2016. Remains on  the 

Derelict Sites Register. 

 

Ballymun Road, 12, D.9. 

 

 

Inspected on 31
st
 August 2016.  Improvement works are ongoing  

site being kept under review. 

Ballymun Road, 172,  

Dublin 11 

Inspected on 12
th
 July 2016.  Reference subsequently received and 

letter sent to owner requesting clearance of overgrowth.  Site being 
kept under review. 
 

Ballymun Rd, Stormanstown 
House, D9 

Inspected on 22
nd

 August 2016.  Site remains on the Derelict Sites 
Register. 

Barnamore Park, 25A, 
Finglas South, D.11. 

Inspected on 12
th
 September 2016.  A notice of intention to enter 

the site on the Derelict Sites Register S 8(2)  has been served on 
the owners representatives and  affixed to the site. 

Barry Avenue, 7, Finglas, 

Dublin 11. 

 
Inspected on 12

th
 July 2016.  Letter sent to owner to clear 

overgrowth, board up broken windows. Site being kept under 
review. 
 

Blackhorse Avenue, 511, 
D.7. 

 
Site entered on Derelict Sites Register on 16/9/2016. 

Cabra Park, 73, D7 Re-inspected on 11
th
 July 2016.  Action not required.  File closed. 

Cabra Road, 192a, D7 
Site inspected on 18

th
 August 2016.  No action required.  File 

closed. 

Carnlough Road, 4, Dublin 7 

Inspected on 2
nd

 September 2016.  Entry onto the Register has 
been deferred, improvement  works to be commenced. Site being 
kept under review. 
 

Carnlough Rd., 531, D7 
Property re-inspected on 15

th
 September 2016.  No action 

warranted.  Close file.   

Page 40



Drumcondra Road Lr., 48a - 

50a, D9 
Site re-inspected on 31

st
 August 2016.  No action warranted , File 

closed. 

Fassaugh Avenue, 2A, 

Cabra, D.7. 
Inspected on 4

th
 August 2016.  Letter sent to owners to clear up 

site, board up windows & fix hoarding. Keep under review. 

Gateway Crescent, 41, 

Ballymun 
Inspected on 22

nd
 August 2016.  Owner has been written to under 

the Derelict Sites Act. 

Glasnevin Hill, Old Denis 

Mahony site, Dublin 9. 
Owners written to regarding their plans for redevelopment of this 
site.  Site being kept under review. 

Glenarm Avenue 5, D9. 
Letter sent to owner – requesting that improvement works be 
carried out.  Being kept under review. 

Kildonan Road, 64, D11 Inspected on 15
th
 August 2916.  No action warranted.  File closed. 

Main Street, 59/60, Finglas, 

Dublin 11. 

(The Drake Inn Pub) 

Inspected on 12
th
 September 2016.  Being kept under review. 

McKee Avenue, "Crouch 
End House", Finglas, D.11. 

 
Inspected on 24

th
 August 2016.  Owner has been requested to carry 

out improvement works,  Being kept under review. 

McKee Road, 106, Finglas 

East 
Inspected on 12

th
 August 2016.  Reference of ownership requested 

with view to writing to the owners. 

Pinewood Crescent, site adj. 
No. 21, D11 

Re-inspected on 12
th
 July 2016.  No longer derelict.  Removed from 

Derelict Sites Register. File closed. 

Plunkett Rd, Site adj.2a, D11 
Re-inspected on 8

th
 August 2016.  Site has been entered on the 

Derelict Sites Register. 

Shanard Avenue, 41, D9 Re-inspected on 31
st
 August 2016.  Property was tidy.  File closed. 

Page 41



St Mobhi Boithrin, 

Balnagowan House 
Inspected on 19

th
 August 2016.  Improvement works have been 

carried out on this protected structure. File closed. 

St. Patrick’s Road, 5, D9 
Inspected on 25

th
 August 2016. Overgrowth had been cut back.  No 

action warranted.  File closed. 

Rathvilly Park/Rathvilly 

Drive, D.11. 
Inspected on 8

th
 August 2016.  No action necessary. File closed. 

Rathvilly Drive, 74a, Finglas, 
D.11. 

Being kept under review.  Sale agreed sign on site. 

Tolka Industrial Estate, 
former Protim Abrasives,D11 

 A notice of intention to enter the site on the Derelict Sites Register 
S8(2)  has been served on the owner. 

Woodview Close, 12, 

Donaghmede, D13 
Inspected on 14

th
 September 2016.  Property in good condition. No 

action warranted. File closed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



 

Sites on Derelict Sites Register 

 

 

Location 

 

Owner 

 

Date of Entry 

 

 

19A Fairfield Road, 
Glasnevin, D.9. 

 

 

Mr. Peter Hanlon, c/o Catherine Allison & Co. 
Solrs., 6 Roden Place, Dundalk, Co. Louth. 

 

02/12/2011 

 

7a Oakwood Avenue, D.11 

 

 

Mr. Ronan Carney, 2 Rockfield Grove, 
Maynooth, Co. Kildare. 

 

06/12/2013 

 

Opp. 1-6 Schoolhouse Lane, 
Santry, D.9. 

 

 

Estate of Kevin Fitzsimons, c/o Noel Smyth & 
Partners Solrs., 22 Fitzwilliam Square  

 

Christopher Kelly, 2 Glen Easton Avenue, 
Leixlip, Co. Kildare.   

 

Joseph Kenny, Bishopswod, The Ward, Co. 
Dublin. 

 

18/12/2013 

 

11 Annamoe Terrace, D.7. 

 

 

Mr. Brian Robinson, 11 Annamoe Terrace, 
Cabra, Dublin 7. 

 

27/03/2014 

 

18 Fairways Grove, D.11. 

 

 

Mr. Padraic Rabbitte, Boston, Callanagh 
Lower, Lough Duff, Co. Cavan. 

   

 

13/05/2015 

 

Stormanstown House, 
Ballymun Road, D.9. 

 

 

Barrelglen Ltd., 39 Northumberland Road, 
Ballsbridge, Dublin 4.     

 

04/06/2015 

 

Plunkett Road, site adj. 2a, 
Finglas, D.11. 

 

 

Mr. Peter Downey, 207 Delwood Lawn, 
Castleknock, Dublin 15. 

 

Brian Condron, 16 Farmleigh Park, 
Castleknock, Dublin 15. 

 

18/08/2016 

 

Blackhorse Avenue, 511, 
D.7. 

 

 

Mr. Eric O’ Connor, 511 Blackhorse Ave, D7  

 

16/09/2016 

Page 43





 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2016 
 
Item No: 19 
 

Traffic Service Requests,  
Status Report at 15th October 2016,  

North West Area Committee Meeting, 15th November 2016 
 

Please note that to ensure continued efficient operation of the Sharepoint database system it has become 
necessary to archive all completed items up to and including 31/12/15. Therefore these items are not reflected in 
the Status Report. 

 

 Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Service Request 
Statistics 

 

    *Total TAG Requests received 01/01/16 to 
15/10/16 ( including duplicate requests) 240 

……of which completed 72 

    No. Requests received since previous report 
(i.e. between 16/09/16 and 15/10/16). 12 

  Total Requests received and currently open 
on Sharepoint since 1st January, 2013 (not 
including secondary/duplicate requests. 
Number of secondary requests indicated in 
separate column) 358 

  

    Breakdown of Requests currently open on 
Sharepoint 

   Stage 1 1 
  Stage 2 311 
  Stage 3 1 
  Stage 4 29 
  Stage 5 16 
  

    
Non TAG Service Requests Statistics 

   

    Total Non- TAG Requests received since 1st 
January 2016 679 

…..of which Requests Completed 425 

Total Requests currently received and open 
on Sharepoint since 1st January, 2013 419 

Page 45



Traffic Advisory Group Status Reports 
 
Explanation of Stages: 
 

 Stage 1 -  Set up file, Assignment to Engineer, etc 

 Stage 2 - Assessment, Site surveys, review statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 3 - Consultations, with Garda, Dublin Bus, Luas, NTA, Local residents / 

businesses, etc 

 Stage 4 - Decision, TAG group, statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 5 - Implementation, signs, lines, construction, signal changes, certifications, 

etc 

 

Item Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request Description Date Rec'd SR 
Statu
s 

No. 
Secondar
y 
Requests 

1 1019
9 

GRIFFITH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 3 Tonne Limit for traffic travelling 
westwards from Swords 
Road junction. 

13/01/2014 Stage 
4 

0 

2 1058
0 

FAUSSAGH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

update on traffic calming 
request at this junction 

11/02/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

3 1137
7 

KEMPTON WAY 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. 26/03/2014 Stage 
2 

1 

4 1147
5 

SKREEN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic Lights at the junction of Navan 
Road. 

01/04/2014 Stage 
2 

1 

5 1148
5 

MILLBOURNE 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

on the road.  01/04/2014 Stage 
4 

5 

6 1158
3 

CHURCH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Engineer 
Query 

parking provision at the 
Glasnevin Educate 
Together National 
School. 

03/04/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

7 1192
1 

MILLMOUNT 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Buildout  24/04/2014 Stage 
4 

0 

8 1204
3 

COLLINS DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Zebra 
Crossing 

at the junction of 
Glasaree Road. 

29/04/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

9 1205
2 

COULTRY 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Zebra 
Crossing 

at Gaelscoil Bhail 
Munna. 

29/04/2014 Stage 
2 

1 

10 1222
7 

BALBUTCHER 
LANE (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic Lights at Carton Close/ Carton 
Court/Carton Road.  

12/05/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

11 1240
5 

STORMANSTO
WN ROAD (NW-
EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

additional ramp on the 
road. 

12/05/2014 Stage 
5 

0 

Page 46



12 1240
6 

BALLYGALL 
ROAD EAST 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Cycle Track on both sides of 
the road.  

12/05/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

13 1261
1 

SAINT 
HELENA'S 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

south of Tesco’s 26/05/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

14 1261
2 

SAINT 
HELENA'S 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the junction of Tolka 
Valley Road. 

26/05/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

15 1264
4 

SAINT 
PATRICK'S 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 No Left Turn 
(Rescind) 

from St. Patrick's Road 
onto Whitworth Road, 
during morning peak. 

29/05/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

16 1264
6 

SAINT 
PATRICK'S 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road.  29/05/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

17 1269
2 

SAINT CANICES 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic Lights request for traffic lights 
at the junctin of St 
Canices Rd and 
Ballymun Rd 

04/06/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

18 1290
6 

FINGLAS ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(General) 

and rescindment of Pay 
and Display Parking at 
the parking bay nearest 
the pedestrian lights to 
facilitate the Museum. 

23/06/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

19 1322
5 

BLACKHORSE 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Traffic Lights at the Ashtown Gate.  18/07/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

20 1333
7 

CLAREMONT 
COURT (NW-
EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

on Claremont Court at 
the junction of Fingals 
Road. 

22/07/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

21 1366
4 

NAVAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Bus Lane from the Old Cabra 
Road to Nephin Road 
junction, outbound.  

18/08/2014 Stage 
4 

0 

22 1379
6 

CABRA DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

North west side. from 
the corner of No. 23 to 
Old Cabra Road and 
rescindment of stat no. 
18270 (no parking). To 
be reviewed by Area 
Engineer.  

28/08/2014 Stage 
4 

1 

23 1397
0 

SWORDS ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic Lights at the exit to Elmhurst 
Nursing Home on 
Swords Road. 

05/09/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

24 1405
9 

PINEWOOD 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road 15/09/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

25 1454
4 

GRIFFITH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

between Ballymun Road 
and Ballygall Road East.  

06/10/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 47



26 1454
5 

BALLYBOGGAN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Refuge Island 

at the junction of 
Ballyboggan Road and 
Broombridge Road.  

06/10/2014 Stage 
5 

0 

27 1462
6 

RATOATH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

on Cabra and Finglas 
ends of the road. 

21/10/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

28 1462
7 

FAUSSAGH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road. 21/10/2014 Stage 
2 

3 

29 1462
8 

NEPHIN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road. 21/10/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

30 1463
0 

HAZELCROFT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

at the junction of 
Hazelcroft Road and 
Fairlawn Road. 

21/10/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

31 1463
1 

FAIRLAWN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

request for traffic 
calming on the road. 

21/10/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

32 1475
0 

IONA 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Stop Sign 'Stop' or 'Yield' Sign at 
the junction of Iona 
Villas. 

13/10/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

33 1479
8 

RATOATH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the entrance to 
Colaiste Mhuire.  

14/10/2014 Stage 
2 

3 

34 1521
5 

BALBUTCHER 
LANE (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

At the Community 
Centre, near Carton 
Road. 

04/11/2014 Stage 
2 

5 

35 1522
0 

VENTRY PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

at Ventry Playground. 18/11/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

36 1523
1 

BROOMBRIDGE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

on the corners from 
121/123 Broombridge 
Road to 353 Bannow 
Road. 

18/11/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

37 1535
2 

ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
LAWN (NW-EA) 

D9 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

Request for parking 
restriction as above. 

12/11/2014 Stage 
2 

2 

38 1545
0 

WELLMOUNT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Engineer 
Query 

Erection of mirrors, 
and/or "Danger Vehicles 
Exiting" markings at 
main exit to St. 
Michael's Secondary 
School. 

18/11/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

39 1547
3 

VILLA PARK 
GARDENS (NW-
EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at the footpath dishing 
opposite the Credit 
Union. 

25/11/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

40 1549
0 

IONA ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Engineer 
Query 

Request to investigate 
dangerous junction and 
slow down traffic at 
above. 

20/11/2014 Stage 
4 

0 

Page 48



41 1554
1 

KILDONAN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow Box 
(Extend) 

Dublin Bus request 
yellow box be enlarged 
as current size box 
restricts movement 
turning from Kildonan 
Road onto Mellowes 
Road. 

25/11/2014 Stage 
4 

0 

42 1555
6 

SHANTALLA 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 One-Way 
System 

at the service road at 
the shops. 

26/11/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

43 1560
9 

WHITWORTH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

to replace the Speed 
Cushions with Speed 
Ramps. 

26/11/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

44 1564
9 

FAUSSAGH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request for pedestrian 
crossing at above. 

01/12/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

45 1578
7 

SYCAMORE 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D11 Engineer 
Query 

to arrange for a traffic 
inspection at the 
junction of Sycamre 
Park and Sycamore 
Road. 

16/12/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

46 1584
5 

SYCAMORE 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D11 Engineer 
Query 

Request for traffic 
inspection of the 
junction of Sycamore 
Park and Sycamore 
Road. 

16/12/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

47 1584
6 

SYCAMORE 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request for Pelican 
Crossing at the junction 
of Sycamore Park and 
Sycamore Road. 

16/12/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

48 1584
7 

SYCAMORE 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at the junction of 
Sycamore Park and 
Sycamore Road. 

16/12/2014 Stage 
2 

1 

49 1585
4 

BALLYMUN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Loading Bay at the shops, at The 
Grapevine Off Licence. 

15/12/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

50 1586
6 

SHANTALLA 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(General) 

outside The Haven 
Pharmacy, 2, Shantalla 
Road. 

12/12/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

51 1587
2 

SAINT 
PATRICK'S 
PARADE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

on the road. 18/12/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

52 1598
7 

SAINT MOBHI 
BOITHIRIN (NW-
EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

opposite Nos. 1-3. 19/12/2014 Stage 
4 

3 

53 1607
1 

OLD FINGLAS 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 School 
Warden 

To relocate the existing 
School Warden to the 
pedestrian gate of St. 
Brigid's GNS. 

12/01/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

54 1615
3 

BERRYFIELD 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Children 
Crossing 

on the road. 20/01/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

Page 49



Sign 

55 1615
7 

BOTANIC 
VILLAS (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

on one side of Botanic 
Villas between Nos. 120 
and 124 Botanic Road. 

20/01/2015 Stage 
4 

0 

56 1616
9 

THE RISE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Continuous 
White Line 
(Rescind) 

at the Ballymun Road 
junction. 

16/01/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

57 1625
9 

ULSTER 
STREET (NW-
EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

on Ulster Street at 
Coonaught Street 
junction. 

20/01/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

58 1645
9 

CARNLOUGH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road.  02/02/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

59 1651
9 

VILLA PARK 
GARDENS (NW-
EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

Request for Double 
Yellow Lines or Single 
Yellow Line.  

04/02/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

60 1652
9 

CONNAUGHT 
STREET (NW-
EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road.  05/02/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

61 1654
4 

GLASANAON 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at Gaelscoil Ui Earcain. 05/02/2015 Stage 
2 

2 

62 1659
2 

IONA ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

On the un-named road 
that connects Iona Road 
to Lindsay Road.  

05/11/2014 Stage 
2 

0 

63 1669
4 

RATOATH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Continuous 
White Line 

and rescindment of 
broken white line at the 
new bridge.  

13/02/2015 Stage 
5 

1 

64 1670
6 

MILLMOUNT 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

  17/02/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

65 1672
6 

WALSH ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

request for additional 
traffic calming. 

16/02/2015 Stage 
2 

3 

66 1681
2 

SKREEN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

on the road. 20/02/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

67 1687
5 

FAUSSAGH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. 05/02/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

68 1687
6 

FAUSSAGH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. 07/02/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

69 1688
9 

DRUMCONDRA 
ROAD UPPER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 No Right 
Turn 

from Millmount Avenue 
onto Drumcondra Road. 

24/02/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

70 1700
7 

RATOATH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

from the roundabout at 
Drumcliffe Road up to 
Cabra cross.  

02/03/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

71 1701
0 

SYCAMORE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road.  02/03/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 50



72 1731
1 

COOLATREE 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. 23/03/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

73 1752
9 

VICTORIA LANE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

on Victoria Lane, the 
laneway to the rear of 
Nos. 2-48, Botanic 
Avenue and Nos. 1-55, 
Hollybank Road. 

25/03/2015 Stage 
4 

3 

74 1770
7 

QUARRY ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Engineer 
Query 

NWAC 21/04/15 - 
review of possible 
solutions to tackle the 
illegal parking at the 
pedestrian entrance to 
Homestead Court on 
Quarry Road  

21/04/2015 Stage 
5 

0 

75 1778
5 

KEMPTON 
GROVE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Opposite No. 6.  22/04/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

76 1779
8 

FINGLAS ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow Box inbound at the 
pedestrian crossing at 
the junction of 
Ballyboggan Road. 

23/04/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

77 1780
0 

FINGLAS ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 No U Turn outbound at the junction 
of Ballyboggan Road, 
preventing a U Turn 
onto the inbound lane. 

23/04/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

78 1803
7 

GROVE WOOD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road.  07/05/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

79 1807
8 

COOLATREE 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D9 Stop Sign and rescindment of 
‘Yield’ Sign on Coolatree 
Park at the junction of 
Coolgreena Road.  

08/05/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

80 1807
9 

COOLGREENA 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 School 
Ahead Sign 

on Coolgreena Road 
and Coolatree Park.  

08/05/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

81 1808
2 

BEAUMONT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 No Right 
Turn 

from Beaumont Road 
onto Coolgreena Road, 
during morning peak.  

08/05/2015 Stage 
2 

2 

82 1808
7 

THE PADDOCK 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

Request for a ramp at 
entrance/exit to estate.   

11/05/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

83 1815
4 

MCKEE PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D11  at entrance. 19/05/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

84 1816
1 

WALSH ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

facing Griffith Park. 19/05/2015 Stage 
2 

3 

85 1816
3 

CREMORE 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

 at entrance. 19/05/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

86 1819
5 

GLASANAON 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Parking 
Prohibition 

outside Nos. 154-208.   15/05/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

87 1840
9 

FINGLAS 
PLACE (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road. 28/05/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

Page 51



88 1842
1 

WILLOW PARK 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the shops.  29/05/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

89 1842
2 

WILLOW PARK 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Refuge Island 
(Rescind) 

at the shops. 29/05/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

90 1842
4 

WILLOW PARK 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at the junction of Willow 
Park Crescent. 

29/05/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

91 1848
9 

BALLYGALL 
PARADE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Road Closure 
(Rescind) 

at the western end of 
the road.  

15/06/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

92 1862
2 

SAINT 
PATRICK'S 
PARADE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road. 16/06/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

93 1862
4 

VALEVIEW 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

request for speed ramps 
on Valeview Crescent. 

16/06/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

94 1863
0 

SAINT 
PATRICK'S 
PARADE (NW-
EA) 

D9 One-Way 
System 

on the road. 16/06/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

95 1865
3 

GROVE WOOD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road.  08/06/2015 Stage 
2 

2 

96 1871
5 

FARNHAM 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

crossing to the pitches. 
  
  

16/06/2015 Stage 
4 

0 

97 1874
1 

DALCASSIAN 
DOWNS (NW-
EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

between 4 & 5, and 90 & 
91 Dalcassian Downs. 

15/06/2015 Stage 
4 

0 

98 1876
6 

FITZMAURICE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Pedestrian crossing at 
the shops on 
 Fitzmaurice Rd, at 
junction with Ballygall 
Rd East. 

17/06/2015 Stage 
2 

4 

99 1876
7 

FITZMAURICE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

Children Crossing sign 
at shops on Fitzmaurice 
Rd, at junction with 
Ballygall Rd East. 

17/06/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

100 1883
1 

DRUMCONDRA 
ROAD LOWER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Stop Sign and rescindment of 
‘Yield’ Sign on the cycle 
lane at the entrance to 
the Archbishop’s House. 

22/06/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

101 1885
1 

CABRA DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 No Parking request for No 
Parking/Double Yellow 
Lines on the north west 
corner of the entrance 
road to Cabra Drive 
from the Old Cabra 
Road 

24/06/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 52



102 1885
7 

LINDSAY ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow Box 
(Extend) 

at junction of Hart's 
Corner/Lindsay Rd.  

23/06/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

103 1887
8 

LINDSAY ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

Request for additional 
speed ramps on above 
road 

24/06/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

104 1891
3 

SHANDON 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D7  Request for Children 
crossing sign at above 
locations and also 
Shandon Gardens 

24/06/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

105 1895
7 

BOTANIC ROAD 
NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow Box Request for yellow box 
at junction of the Smurfit 
site on Botanic Road 

30/07/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

106 1902
0 

BLACKHORSE 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

in the vicinity of Cabra 
Gate entrance to the 
Phoenix Park. 

03/07/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

107 1902
9 

WALSH ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

Request for additional 
speed ramps 

06/07/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

108 1906
2 

SAINT EITHNE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

for ramps on road. 07/07/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

109 1907
9 

FINGLAS 
PLACE (NW-EA) 

D11 Road Closure at one end of the road.  28/05/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

110 1915
2 

KEMPTON 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

at the entrance to the 
Kempton Estate off the 
Navan Road 

21/07/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

111 1915
3 

BROOMBRIDGE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

At the junctions of 
Broombridge Road, 
Kilkieran Road and 
Ventry Road. 

21/07/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

112 1915
5 

CARNLOUGH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

to examine the corners 
of Carnlough Road for 
illegal parking 

21/07/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

113 1917
2 

NAVAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D5 Single Yellow 
Line 

in the vicinity of No. 52 21/07/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

114 1918
4 

PLUNKETT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

Speed ramps requested 
for Plunkett Road  

16/07/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

115 1938
4 

OFFALY ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Requesting double 
yellow lines at the 
junction of Offaly Road 
& Dowth Avenue 

24/07/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

116 1943
3 

DRUMCONDRA 
ROAD UPPER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow Box at the entrance to the 
Nest Creche/Skylon 
Hotel. 

30/07/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

117 1951
2 

BALLYGALL 
ROAD WEST 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

At the rear of St. 
Canice's Church. 

05/08/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

118 1951
4 

CLUNE ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

 05/08/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 53



119 1962
5 

DRUMCONDRA 
ROAD UPPER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow Box Outside the northern 
vehicular entrance to St. 
Patrick's College.  

13/08/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

120 1966
6 

THE THATCH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow Box 
(Rescind) 

Requesting that yellow 
lines be removed from in 
front of ESB Boxes 
across from Thatch 
Road  

14/08/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

121 1969
4 

KINVARA 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

Traffic calming 
measures for Kinvara 
Drive. 

17/08/2015 Stage 
2 

3 

122 1969
9 

GRIFFITH 
DOWNS (NW-
EA) 

D9 Engineer 
Query 

 17/08/2015 Stage 
4 

2 

123 1972
5 

FINGLAS PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on the long straight 
section. 

15/09/2015 Stage 
2 

2 

124 1972
6 

WOODHAZEL 
WAY (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

at the junction of 
Woodhazel Way and 
Woodhazel Close. 

15/09/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

125 1975
5 

HAMPSTEAD 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

Request for traffic 
calming measures  

21/08/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

126 1983
5 

WALSH ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Cul-De-Sac Request for northern 
ends of above roads to 
be blocked off (cul de 
sacs to be put in place). 

26/08/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

127 1983
9 

DARGLE ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Loading Bay Convert easternmost 
P&D parking space into 
a Loading Bay. 

26/08/2015 Stage 
4 

3 

128 1985
9 

GLASILAWN 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Loading Bay Outside 19 Glasilawn 
Avenue, Dublin 11 

27/08/2015 Stage 
4 

1 

129 1990
7 

BOTANIC 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Yellow Box Yellow Boxes for 
Botanic Avenue. 

31/08/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

130 1990
8 

BOTANIC 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Filter Light Filter light for junction of 
Saint Mobhi Rd & 
Botanic Ave. 

31/08/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

131 1991
0 

RATOATH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 School 
Ahead Sign 

request for school 
ahead signs to be 
placed on Ratoath Road 
in Cabra , two schools - 
Saint Catherines and 
Saint Dominics 

01/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

132 1992
7 

LORCAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Install pedestrian 
lights at corner of 
Lorcan Rd. 

01/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 54



133 1992
8 

SWORDS ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Pedestrian crossing, or 
warning sign, at slip 
road from McDonalds in 
OMNI Centre onto the 
Swords Rd. 

01/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

134 1994
9 

RATOATH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow Box Request for yellow box 
at top end of above road 
at Cabra Cross 

02/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

135 2006
1 

GLEBE VIEW 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

Request for traffic 
calming measures in 
Glebe View off Church 
Street as motorists 
speeding into the cul de 
sac causing dangerous 
situations for residents. 

10/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

136 2017
4 

BOTANIC 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

reps for review of traffic 
management on Botanic 
Avenue 

15/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

137 2018
1 

SAINT FINBAR 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

on the road.  07/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

138 2018
5 

DRUMCONDRA 
ROAD LOWER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Bus Lane on the bridge over the 
Tolka, outbound.  

15/09/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

139 2018
8 

GLENTIES 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D11 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

on the road.  15/09/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

140 2018
9 

GLENTIES 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road.  15/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

141 2019
0 

TOLKA VALLEY 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Roundabout at the junction of 
Ratoath Road.  

15/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

142 2023
2 

ABBEY DRIVE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

from the bend at 
Ashington Park 

16/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

143 2025
6 

LEINSTER 
STREET 
NORTH (NW-
EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 
(extension of 
area) 

  17/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

144 2027
8 

SILLOGE ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request for pedestrian 
crossing at Holy Spirit 
school 

21/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

145 2031
7 

DINGLE ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

Request for speed 
ramps or traffic calming 
measures on Dingle 
Road 

21/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 55



146 2037
9 

BALLYMUN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(General) 

Request by Cllr to have 
a disabled parking bay 
outside the Supervalue 
shop on Ballymun road. 

23/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

147 2038
5 

CABRA GROVE 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

along the left-hand side 
as you enter from Cabra 
Road, up as far as 
the curve. 
  

24/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

148 2049
4 

DANE ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

Request for speed 
ramps on St Josephs 
Way, off dane road, 
beside Cairn Court  

30/09/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

149 2051
6 

SHANGAN 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Request for double 
yellow lines around the 
Whiteacre Park Estate 

01/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

150 2052
2 

GLASANAON 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Request for double 
yellow lines outside 
Gaelscoil ui Earcain 

01/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

151 2056
8 

PHIBSBOROUG
H ROAD (NW-
EA) 

D7 Yellow Box Request for yellow box  
at entrance to Bective 
Square Apartment 
complex at junction with 
Phibsborough road 

05/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

152 2063
0 

SCRIBBLESTO
WN AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

within the Scribblestown 
Estate. 

20/10/2015 Stage 
2 

3 

153 2063
4 

CHURCH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Outside No. 3 Church 
Avenue. Cars visiting 
Bon Secours Hospital 
parking on Chrurch 
Avenue. 

07/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

154 2067
7 

THE THATCH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at entrance beside 
No.13. 

20/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

155 2068
5 

VALLEY PARK 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

at entrance. 20/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

156 2070
4 

DELVILLE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Stop Sign at the junction of Delville 
Road and St Pappin's 
Road. 

20/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

157 2070
6 

RATOATH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Right Turn 
Filter Light 

from Ratoath Road onto 
Navan Road. 

20/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

158 2070
7 

BOTANIC 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at the junction of Botanic 
Avenue with St. Itas 
Terrace, Botanic Road. 

20/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 56



159 2072
9 

KINVARA 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D8 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request from area office 
from Navan Rd 
community council for 
pedestrian lights at 
Kinvara Avenue and 
Ashtown Grove. 

12/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

160 2073
9 

ASHTOWN 
GROVE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the junction of 
Ashtown Grove and 
Navan Road. 

09/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

161 2079
4 

COLLINS 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Yellow Box to review traffic at 
the pedestrian lights 
at junction of Collins 
Avenue and Ballymun 
Road. 

20/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

162 2084
8 

PARKGATE 
STREET (NW-
EA) 

D8 Loading Bay Outside 25 Parkgate 
Street, Dublin 8. 

16/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

163 2086
8 

CONNAUGHT 
STREET (NW-
EA) 

D7 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

To determine whether 
the road is high demand 
or not in relation to the 
level of parking 
occupancy for the 
provision of a bay 
outside No. 37. Pay and 
Display and Permit 
Parking will have to be 
rescinded.  

19/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

164 2096
3 

FERGUSON 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 
(Rescind) 

on the road.  20/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

165 2098
4 

CLAREMONT 
COURT (NW-
EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

from 5m after the 
junction with Finglas Rd, 
in towards the first 
residence on 
Claremount Court.  

22/10/2015 Stage 
2 

3 

166 2099
1 

NAVAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 No Parking Request to disallow 
parking outside créche 
at 351a Navan Rd. 

22/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

167 2099
5 

SAINT 
MARGARET'S 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Upgrade of the 
roundabout at LIDL and 
if the upgrade is 
warranted.  

19/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

168 2105
7 

COLLINS 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Yellow Box  at the exit of Whitehall 
Church at Collins 
Avenue.  

27/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

169 2107
6 

MANNIX ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Cul-De-Sac To make Mannix Road a 
Cul-de-Sac, between 
the rear entrance to 
Mannix Road and the 
Hollybank Road 
entrance.  

28/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 57



170 2109
4 

GLASNEVIN 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

To review the 
Pedestrian Crossings at 
the junction of Glasnevin 
Avenue/Collins 
Avenue/Ballymun Road.  

28/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

171 2109
6 

ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at the junction of Collins 
Avenue Extension.  

28/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

172 2109
7 

OLD FINGLAS 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 School 
Warden 

at St. Mary’s Faith 
Secondary School.  

28/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

173 2110
0 

SAINT PAPPIN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Parking 
Prohibition 

at the western junction 
of Dean Swift Road and 
St. Pappin’s Road.  

28/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

174 2110
7 

OLD CABRA 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

To review the traffic 
calming measures on 
the road.  

27/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

175 2112
2 

GLENBEIGH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at the junction of Old 
Cabra Road.  

28/10/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

176 2118
1 

OLD FINGLAS 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the entrance to St. 
Mary's School.  

29/10/2015 Stage 
2 

2 

177 2773
7 

DRUMCONDRA 
ROAD UPPER 
(NW-EA) 

D1  on Drumcondra Road 
Upper at the junction 
with The Village. 

17/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

178 2774
0 

YELLOW ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Stop Sign on Yellow Road at the 
junction with The Thatch 
Road. 
Follow on request for 
info - 01/07/16 
acknowledged. 

17/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

179 2774
1 

SANTRY 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Traffic Lights at the junction of Santry 
Avenue and 
Forrestwood Estate. 

17/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

180 2774
8 

GLASAREE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

Requesting 'Children at 
Play sign' be erected on 
Glasaree Road 

09/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

181 2775
4 

BELCLARE 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

at No. 13.  10/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

182 2776
1 

CREMORE 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D11 Caution 
Children Sign 

Request for Caution 
children crossing sign 
on above road 

11/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

183 2778
0 

PROSPECT 
WAY (NW-EA) 

D9 Bus Lane Relocate the Bus Lane 
to the middle lane. 

10/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

184 2780
3 

IONA ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

outside No. 78. Pay and 
Display and Permit 
Parking will have to be 
rescinded.  

16/11/2015 Stage 
5 

0 

Page 58



185 2782
5 

RIVER ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D15 Double 
Yellow Lines 

on the bend. 12/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

186 2786
6 

DRUMCLIFFE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Caution 
Children Sign 

Request for Children 
Crossing sign at 
Drumcliffe swale 

13/11/2015 Stage 
2 

2 

187 2792
1 

FINGLAS ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Electric Car 
Bay 

Finglas road north of 
junction with Towerview 
Cottages, opposite 
cemetery, the 2nd and 
3rd spaces. 

19/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

188 2797
9 

BOTANIC ROAD 
NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow Box 
(Extend) 

To include the bus lane 
at the junction of 
Lindsay Road.  

18/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

189 2800
5 

PROSPECT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow Box on Prospect 
Road/Finglas Road, 
having crossed from 
Lindsay Road.  

23/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

190 2800
7 

SHANLISS 
GROVE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

at entrance near 
junction with Shanliss 
Avenue. 

17/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

191 2813
3 

BOTANIC ROAD 
NW-EA) 

D9 No Right 
Turn 

from Botanic Avenue 
onto St. Mobhi Road, 
during evening peak 
hours.  

26/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

192 2815
2 

HOME FARM 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Loading Bay outside Homepharm 
Pharmacy, No. 45a.  

24/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

193 2815
4 

HOME FARM 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(General) 

outside Homepharm 
Pharmacy, No. 45a.  

24/11/2015 Stage 
2 

3 

194 2815
8 

MCKEE 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

on either side of the 
entrance to Heath 
Square. 

26/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

195 2819
7 

CONYNGHAM 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D8 Parking 
Prohibition 

and rescindment of Pay 
and Display Parking 
along Longmeadow 
Apartments.  

30/11/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

196 2834
1 

LINDSAY 
GROVE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

at the Prospect Road, 
end of the road.  

17/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

197 2835
3 

NAVAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the Halfway House. 07/12/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

198 2836
7 

GROVE PARK 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D10 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. 15/12/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

199 2836
8 

GROVE PARK 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. 15/12/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 59



200 2836
9 

SHANOWEN 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

in the cul-de-sac. 15/12/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

201 2837
0 

GALLAUN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Stop Sign Stop/Yield sign at the 
back of Poppintree 
Sports Complex and 
Gallaun Road. 

15/12/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

202 2837
4 

GLASNEVIN 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Continuous 
White Line 

from the junction with 
Ballymun Road as far as 
30/32. 

15/12/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

203 2837
5 

LORCAN 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at the junction of Lorcan 
Avenue and Lorcan 
Park. 

15/12/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

204 2837
6 

LORCAN 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Yield Sign at the junction of Lorcan 
Avenue and Lorcan 
Park. 

15/12/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

205 2838
2 

KILSHANE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road, adjacent to 
No. 11. 

07/12/2015 Stage 
2 

1 

206 2841
9 

FINGLAS ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Pedestrian 
Crossing/improve traffic 
flow at Finglas Road 
roundabout and Finglas 
Village junction. 

15/12/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

207 2851
7 

GLENTIES 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

On Glenties Park at 
Cardiffsbridge Road 
junction.  

15/12/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

208 2863
2 

SHANLISS 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

 11/01/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

209 2863
3 

BALBUTCHER 
LANE (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

from the old Shopping 
Centre to Poppintree. 

11/01/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

210 2872
9 

DALCASSIAN 
DOWNS (NW-
EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

and rescindment of Pay 
and Display and Permit 
Parking opposite Nos. 
11-14. 

07/01/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

211 2875
2 

BOTANIC ROAD 
NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic Lights To move the traffic lights 
on Botanic Road to just 
before the Lindsay Road 
junction.  

18/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

212 2875
3 

BOTANIC ROAD 
NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

on Botanic Road just 
before the Lindsay Road 
junction.  

18/11/2015 Stage 
2 

0 

213 2879
3 

VALLEY PARK 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

on the road. 19/01/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

214 2879
5 

COLLINS 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Engineer 
Query 

To review of the junction 
turning left from Collins 
Avenue West onto 
Swords Road.  

11/01/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 60



215 2880
9 

ASHINGTON 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

on the road. 19/01/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

216 2881
5 

BLACKHORSE 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

various as part of 
Blackhorse Avenue 
Scheme. 

12/01/2016 Stage 
5 

1 

217 2881
6 

DALCASSIAN 
DOWNS (NW-
EA) 

D11 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

Request to review the 
Pay and Display and 
Permit Parking opposite 
Nos. 12-14.  

11/01/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

218 2901
1 

SHANDON 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

from the Shandon 
Gardens junction.   

18/01/2016 Stage 
2 

-1 

219 2901
6 

WOODHAZEL 
CLOSE (NW-EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

Parking prohibitions for 
Woodhazel Close, 
Ballymun. 

16/01/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

220 2904
9 

KEMPTON WAY 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

on Kempton Way. 19/01/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

221 2906
2 

BOTANIC 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(Rescind 
Residential) 

outside No. 88 and 
replace with Pay and 
Display and Permit 
Parking.  

20/01/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

222 2908
5 

BOTANIC 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Right Turn 
Filter Light 

from Botanic Avenue 
onto Saint Mobhi Road.  

26/11/2015 Stage 
4 

0 

223 2915
6 

LEINSTER 
STREET 
NORTH (NW-
EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

At No. 1, from the pay 
and display and permit 
parking to the junction of 
the laneway. 

28/01/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

224 2916
2 

PINE HURST 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow Box east side of Ratoath Rd, 
at entrance to Pinehurst 
Estate. 

28/01/2016 Stage 
2 

1 

225 2920
8 

SWORDS ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 No Left Turn from Swords Road onto 
Collins Avenue.  

01/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

226 2930
2 

MARLBOROUG
H MEWS (NW-
EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

on the road. 01/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

227 2937
2 

DUNARD ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

DYLs for Dunard Rd, 
close to Tescos,  on the 
corners heading into the 
cul-de-sac at Nos. 78 & 
50. 

04/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

228 2941
0 

CONNAUGHT 
STREET (NW-
EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Request for double 
yellow lines on laneway 
at rear of above roads. 

05/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

229 2943
2 

PINEWOOD 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

outside 25/27 16/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 61



230 2952
4 

LARKHILL 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

 17/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

231 2952
7 

BALLYMUN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow Box Yellow box at above 
junction 

09/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

232 2983
7 

RATOATH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

Parking restrictions 
outside no.287 Ratoath 
Road 

19/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

233 2988
2 

SHANTALLA 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

Speed ramps on the 
road 

23/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

234 2996
5 

SAINT 
HELENA'S 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

from the junction of St. 
Helena’s Drive to the 
rear entrance to Tesco 
Clearwater.  

26/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

235 2996
9 

TOLKA VALLEY 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

 for safe crossing for 
disabled people to cross 
the disabled entrance to 
Tolka Valley Park. 

29/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

236 3000
2 

BALLYGALL 
ROAD WEST 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow Box Request for yellow box 
at above junction. 

29/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

237 3000
3 

DALCASSIAN 
DOWNS (NW-
EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

outside the houses.  29/02/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

238 3004
6 

SAINT 
PATRICK'S 
PARADE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

on the road, from St. 
Patrick's Road to St. 
Columba's Road Upper.  

02/03/2016 Stage 
2 

1 

239 3006
3 

NORE ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Double yellow lines on 
above road outside 
SPACE SELF STORAG
E premises 

03/03/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

240 3009
8 

COLLINS 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

from the junction of The 
Thatch Road.  

04/03/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

241 3009
9 

GRIFFITH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Yellow Box at the junction of 
Ballygall Road East.  

04/03/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

242 3011
1 

FITZMAURICE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

outside the Credit Union  04/03/2016 Stage 
2 

2 

243 3012
8 

COLLINS 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at the turning circle at 
No. 451. 

07/03/2016 Stage 
2 

2 

244 3017
8 

ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D9 Single Yellow 
Line 

outside  Nos. 12A – 
12C.  

08/03/2016 Stage 
2 

2 

245 3026
0 

LARKHILL 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 One-Way 
System 

Weekdays, at school 
collection and drop off 
times. 

10/03/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

246 3031
3 

SAINT PAPPIN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic Lights at the junction of 
Stormanstown Road.  

15/03/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 62



247 3036
6 

SAINT 
JOSEPH'S WAY 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

Ramps or traffic calming  18/03/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

248 3042
6 

SHANDON 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display 
Parking 
(extension of 
area) 

Extension of parking 
area 

22/03/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

249 3054
0 

OWENSILLA 
TERRACE (NW-
EA) 

D11 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

at No. 6.  31/03/2016 Stage 
4 

0 

250 3063
0 

SHANOWEN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

on either side of the 
entrance to Shanowen 
Hall Student Residence.  

07/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

251 3063
8 

HOLLYBANK 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

Outside No. 72. Pay and 
Display and Permit 
Parking will have to be 
rescinded.  

08/04/2016 Stage 
4 

0 

252 3068
5 

CEDARWOOD 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D11 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

on the road. 19/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

253 3068
6 

BALBUTCHER 
LANE (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

beside the new RapiD 
built homes at Baile Na 
Laochra 

19/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

254 3070
8 

WELLMOUNT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pay & 
Display 
Parking 

on the road N2 junction 
end. 

19/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

255 3074
6 

SPIRE VIEW 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

on the road 13/04/2016 Stage 
2 

1 

256 3076
8 

DEAN SWIFT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

on the road.  12/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

257 3080
7 

MARLBOROUG
H ROAD (NW-
EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

on the road.  
  

14/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

258 3082
6 

BALBUTCHER 
LANE (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

At Baile Na Laochra 
(Modular homes site ) 

16/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

259 3083
0 

SHANLISS WAY 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

between the Santry 
Lane end and the 
pedestrian entrance to 
Ballymun Estate.  

16/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

260 3087
0 

CRANOGUE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Yield Sign at the junction of 
Cranogue Terrace.  

19/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

261 3093
1 

SHANTALLA 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

Extension of the 
disabled parking bay 
outside No. 8. 

07/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 63



262 3095
0 

POPPINTREE 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road at above 
location 

22/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

263 3099
3 

RATHLIN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

on the road opposite the 
entrance to 400 Griffith 
Avenue 

25/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

264 3100
3 

VIOLET HILL 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D11 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

at entrance to the Estate 25/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

265 3101
7 

BARRY 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D11 School 
Ahead Sign 

on the road 26/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

266 3111
3 

ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D9 Continuous 
White Line 

(or Double Yellow Lines) 
on the two bends.  

29/04/2016 Stage 
2 

2 

267 3114
6 

WILLOW PARK 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow Box Outside No. 156. 03/05/2016 Stage 
4 

0 

268 3115
7 

HAMPSTEAD 
COURT (NW-
EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

Request for extension of 
DYL's outside no 42, 
location is opposite the 
Community Centre, at 
entrance to apartments. 

05/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

269 3119
3 

SAINT CANICES 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 School 
Warden 

at Sacred Heart Boys 
School. 

09/05/2016 Stage 
4 

0 

270 3120
0 

BALLYGALL 
ROAD WEST 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

at the junction of 
Ballygall Road West and 
Main Street Finglas. 

09/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

271 3120
1 

ABBOTSTOWN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on the road. 09/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

272 3120
6 

ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

on one side of the road. 17/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

273 3120
9 

WALNUT LAWN 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

opposite No. 11. 17/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

274 3121
0 

CABRA ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow Box at the junction of Cabra 
Road and Dowth 
Avenue. 

17/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

275 3121
1 

WESTWOOD 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

at the entrance to 
Westwood Road from 
Ratoath Road. 

17/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

276 3121
6 

BALBUTCHER 
LANE (NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow Box at the junction of Carton 
Drive and Balbuthcer 
Lane. 

17/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

277 3125
7 

RATOATH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Bus Stop 
Marking 

at Dublin Bus No. 7027. 06/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

278 3131
2 

MILLMOUNT 
VILLAS (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

On Millmount Villas 
across the garage 
entrance to No. 48 
Millmount Avenue.   

12/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 64



279 3135
0 

SHANTALLA 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Stop Sign at the roundabout at the 
junction of Shantalla 
Road and Swords Road.  

09/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

280 3135
4 

ALBERT 
COLLEGE 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at Albert College Court.  09/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

281 3136
4 

MAGENTA 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic 
Calming 

traffic calming measures 
at the entrance  

16/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

282 3137
8 

SAINT 
CLEMENTS 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 
(Rescind) 

from outside No. 1. 17/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

283 3141
5 

FAUSSAGH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

on the road. 17/05/2016 Stage 
5 

0 

284 3151
4 

SHANOWEN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow Box at the entrance to 
Shanowen Hall Student 
Residence 

07/04/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

285 3155
5 

CABRA ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

across entrance to 
property No. 123 

25/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

286 3171
5 

SHANOWEN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9  on above junction 31/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

287 3171
7 

SHANOWEN 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at the entrance 31/05/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

288 3176
0 

BALLYGALL 
PARADE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

 on above road 03/06/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

289 3182
7 

LORCAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

on above road 08/06/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

290 3191
0 

BALLYMUN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

between house number 
18 and 20 

10/06/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

291 3202
7 

NAVAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Bus Lane Bus Time Improvement 
Sheme including Bus 
Lane between Skreen 
Road and Nephin Road 
and No Right Turn from 
Navan Road onto 
Skreen Road. 

16/06/2016 Stage 
4 

0 

292 3205
2 

MILLBOURNE 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

change stat from nose 
to kerb to parallel 
parking 

16/06/2016 Stage 
5 

0 

293 3207
4 

SHANOWEN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at Shanowen Hall 
Apartments. 

20/06/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

294 3207
5 

MARGUERITE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

in laneways (see email). 20/06/2016 Stage 
4 

0 

Page 65



295 3210
8 

POPPINTREE 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

on Poppintree Crescent 
and Belclare Avenue.  

13/06/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

296 3211
3 

COOLOCK 
LANE (NW-EA) 

D9 Right Turn 
Filter Light 

from Coolock Lane into 
Oarkpark Estate.  

13/06/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

297 3217
4 

CHURCH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

at St Mobhis Church, 
Church Avenue, 
Ballymun. 

21/06/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

298 3235
2 

DRUMCONDRA 
ROAD UPPER 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Outside The Nest 
Creche 27 Upper 
Drumcondra Rd 

27/06/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

299 3235
6 

WELLMOUNT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11  Request to review 
vehicle entrance to St 
Michaels School in 
respect of approaching 
cyclists. 

28/06/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

300 3237
5 

SAINT ITA'S 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

outside No.14 29/06/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

301 3244
0 

SHANDON 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Request for DYL's 
outside 114 shandon 
Park (request also in for 
repainting of existing 
ones at side of house 
SR 32438) 

01/07/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

302 3245
4 

LEIX ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Engineer 
Query 

Request for engineer to 
look at putting rush 
hour restrictions at the 
above area, and also for 
engineer to put plans 
for increased parking 
into the area for when 
the LUAS station opens. 

04/07/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

303 3245
5 

DOWTH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Parking 
Prohibition 

Request for parking 
restrictions at above 
road due to issues for 
the local residents as a 
result of illegal parking, 
and no parking 
restrictions. 

04/07/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

304 3245
8 

DOWTH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Speed 
Ramps 

Request for speed 
ramps for above road as 
cars using it as a rat run. 

04/07/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

305 3252
3 

MARLBOROUG
H ROAD (NW-
EA) 

D7 Continuous 
White Line 
(Rescind) 

on Marlborough Road at 
junction with North 
Circular Road 

05/07/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

306 3255
5 

CREMORE 
HEIGHTS (NW-
EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at 1-29 on the church 
sie of the road. 

19/07/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 66



307 3257
8 

ARRAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

outside No. 28. 07/07/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

308 3266
8 

KEMPTON 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

in the estate 12/07/2016 Stage 
2 

1 

309 3266
9 

BALLYMUN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Yellow Box outside No.23 12/07/2016 Stage 
4 

0 

310 3269
6 

SHANOWEN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Outside number 190  13/07/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

311 3269
8 

HOME FARM 
PARK (NW-EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Double yellow lines at 
entrance to Home Farm 
Park 

13/07/2016 Stage 
2 

1 

312 3298
6 

PROSPECT 
SQUARE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

Committee requests that 
DYLs be marked around 
bend of Prospect Sq. 
and St. Teresa Road 
 

28/07/2016 Stage 
2 

2 

313 3305
4 

SWORDS ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

 at Comet Pub 28/07/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

314 3305
8 

ANNALY ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

request DYLs from stop 
sign towards his house 
  

29/07/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

315 3308
1 

GLASANAON 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

above road 02/08/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

316 3314
9 

WELLMOUNT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request for pedestrian 
crossing  

04/08/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

317 3315
3 

TOLKA 
COTTAGES 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

opposite property No. 
12. 

08/08/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

318 3328
2 

SWORDS ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

  
Extra crossing. 

16/08/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

319 3331
2 

KINVARA 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D3 Right Turn 
Filter Light 

from Kinvara Avenue, 
see comments on 
previous SR2010. 

17/08/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

320 3332
5 

CHARLEVILLE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Double 
Yellow Lines 

 at corner of Charlville 
Rd turning on to Cabra 
Rd. 
  

18/08/2016 Stage 
2 

3 

321 3334
3 

CHURCH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Double 
Yellow Lines 

DYLs for Church 
Avenue, between 11 
Church Ave and 2 
Ballymun Rd. 

18/08/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

322 3336
8 

CABRA ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(General) 

in the vicinity of St. 
Peter’s Avenue.  

24/08/2016 Stage 
4 

0 

323 3345
9 

NAVAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Yellow Box at bus stop 1660 
outbound. 

30/08/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

Page 67



324 3346
6 

MILLBOURNE 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Disabled 
Parking Bay 
(General) 

Request to relocate a 
general disabled parking 
bay from outside the 
library to outside the 
health centre.   

30/08/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

325 3364
8 

KINVARA PARK 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Pay & 
Display 
Parking 

at the parking area at 
the shops, Nos. 37-43.  

06/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

326 3368
1 

MAREWOOD 
CRESCENT (NW-EA) 

Speed 
Cushions 

Need higher ramps to 
slow down cars. 

09/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

327 3369
9 

GATEWAY 
MEWS (NW-EA) 

D17 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at entrance to the road. 20/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

328 3370
1 

NAVAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

Request by CRM for 
traffic calming at St 
Mary's Church-  

12/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

329 3371
8 

GLASANAON 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 School 
Warden 

at Geal Scoil Ui Earcain. 12/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

330 3371
9 

GLASANAON 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 School 
Warden 
Crossing Box 

at the main entrance to 
Gael Scoil Ui Earcain. 

12/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

331 3372
0 

GLASANAON 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

at the junction of 
Glasanaon Road and 
Clasanaon Park. 

12/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

332 3372
3 

BEAUMONT 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D5 Filter Light for turning right and left 
to go into Beaumont 
Hospital from Beaumont 
Road. 

12/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

333 3373
3 

MILLMOUNT 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request for above at 
Millmount House on the 
Fagans side of the road! 

09/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

334 3373
5 

GRIFFITH 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request for another ped 
crossing south of 
the junction of Griffith 
Avenue and 
Drumcondra Road 
Upper. 

13/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

335 3373
8 

SWORDS ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request to stagger the 
Pedestrian Crossing on 
Swords Road near the 
entrance to Gaeltacht 
Park at Boyle Sports. 

13/09/2016 Stage 
4 

0 

336 3378
3 

VIOLET HILL 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

request for DYLs 14/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

337 3381
5 

BALLYMUN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow Box at the junction of St. 
Pappin Road.  

12/09/2016 Stage 
4 

0 

Page 68



338 3381
9 

SHANTALLA 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

request for pedestrian 
crossings on the 
Shantall Road Bridge at 
the top of the bridge and 
at the bollards on the 
Shantalla Road end. 

20/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

339 3385
3 

CARTON ROAD (NW-
EA) 

Speed 
Ramps 

on above road 1-16 20/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

340 3385
4 

BALLYGALL 
CRESCENT 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

on above road 20/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

341 3388
1 

NAVAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

from Cabra Cross to 
Ashtown 

15/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

342 3399
1 

NORTH ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow Box outside gate of 
Brookfield Court senior 
citizens 

21/09/2016 Stage 
4 

0 

343 3399
2 

NORTH ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Double 
Yellow Lines 

outside gate of 
brookfield court senior 
citizens 

21/09/2016 Stage 
2 

0 

344 3418
9 

FAUSSAGH 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

at the Liam Whelan 
bridge. 

05/10/2016 Stage 
1 

0 

345 3425
1 

CONYNGHAM 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D8 Toucan 
Crossing 

at the junction with 
Chesterfield Avenue 

11/10/2016 Stage 
4 

0 

346 6328 RIVER ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D15 Speed 
Ramps 

additional Ramp around 
the corner from 
Pelletstown Manor. 

25/02/2013 Stage 
3 

6 

347 6358 SHANGAN 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic Lights At junction of Balbutcher 
Lane and Balcurris 
Road 

04/03/2013 Stage 
2 

3 

348 6375 BALBUTCHER 
LANE (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic Lights at junction of Sillogue 
Road. 

28/02/2013 Stage 
5 

0 

349 6706 BALCURRIS 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Pedestrian 
Refuge Island 

At pedestrian lights at 
rear of Ballymun 
Shopping Centre facing 
Plunkett Tower 
 

27/03/2013 Stage 
5 

0 

350 7855 CARRIG ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D13 Speed 
Ramps 

between Knowth & 
Druid Court.  

26/06/2013 Stage 
5 

1 

351 8014 SHANTALLA 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D9 Parking 
Prohibition 

outside Mace shop. 17/07/2013 Stage 
5 

3 

352 8263 IONA ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Traffic Island Request for traffic island 
or build out at the 
junction of Crawford 
Avenue. 
 

08/08/2013 Stage 
5 

1 

353 8385 CRANOGUE 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D11 Speed 
Ramps 

Appeal to S.R 6320 - 
Reps for Ramps on 
Cranogue Road 

19/08/2013 Stage 
2 

1 

Page 69



 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

354 8665 OLD CABRA 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

Request for traffic 
calming measures at the 
junction of North 
Circular Road/Old Cabra 
Road/Prussia Street, at 
Hanlon’s Corner. 

12/09/2013 Stage 
2 

0 

355 8673 SAINT 
PATRICK'S 
ROAD (NW-EA) 

D9 No Left Turn Request for no left turn 
from St. Patrick's Road 
onto Whitworth Road, 
during morning peak. 

12/09/2013 Stage 
4 

1 

356 8810 COULTRY 
DRIVE (NW-EA) 

D9 Speed 
Ramps 

close to No. 27. 07/10/2013 Stage 
5 

2 

357 9683 BALBUTCHER 
LANE (NW-EA) 

D11 Traffic 
Calming 

at its junction with 
Carton Terrace/Carton 
Drive. 

02/12/2013 Stage 
5 

0 

358 9921 CRAWFORD 
AVENUE (NW-
EA) 

D9 Buildout  near the junction of 
Iona Road.  

06/12/2013 Stage 
5 

0 

Page 70



 
 
The Chairman and Members of 
North West Area Committee. 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2016 
 

Item No: 20 

            North West Nov 
Area Agenda 
15/11/16 (TAG 
Date: 25/10/16) 

          

Item Request Ref Road Post-
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Request 
by 

TAG Result TAG Comments Sec Date Rec'd 

1 Traffic 
Conditions 

32669 BALLYMUN 
ROAD (NW-
EA) 

D9 Yellow 
Box 

outside No.23 resident Not 
Recommended 

A yellow box is used to prevent the 
blocking of junctions. The criteria for 
the provision of a yellow box are 
that the side road traffic flows 
should be significant and that the 
side road should serve a major 
traffic generating facility or a 
minimum of 50 residential units. 
A yellow box is not recommended at 
this location 23 Ballymun Road as it 
does not meet the criteria for the 
provision of same.  A private 
entrance would not be considered 
as a major traffic generating facility. 

0 12/07/2016 

P
age 71



2 Traffic 
Conditions 

33815 BALLYMUN 
ROAD (NW-
EA) 

D11 Yellow 
Box 

at the junction of 
St. Pappin Road.  

resident Not 
Recommended 

Traffic from Wadelai Road was 
monitored during morning and 
evening peak at the junction of 
Maolbuille Road and St Pappins 
Road for traffic heading eastward to 
Ballymun Road. 
  
It was noted that there were very 
few delays at the junction for traffic 
exiting Maolbuille Road. 
  
It has been decided not to install a 
yellow box at the junction  as it 
would effect the eastbound bus 
route on St Pappins Road which 
would lead to delays to the public 
transport network. 
  
If a yellow box were put in, it would 
only lead to rat running and an 
increase in traffic through the 
narrow Wadelai Road and narrow 
Clonmel Road from the Glasnevin 
Road. 

0 12/09/2016 

3 Traffic 
Signals 

29085 BOTANIC 
AVENUE 
(NW-EA) 

D9 Right Turn 
Filter Light 

from Botanic 
Avenue onto 
Saint Mobhi 
Road.  

resident Not 
Recommended 

The request was examined by the 
Traffic Lights section who reported 
that it is not possible to put in a 
filter light at this junction as there is 
not enough space on the road. 

0 26/11/2015 

4 Pedestrian 
Facilities 

34251 CONYNGHAM 
ROAD (NW-
EA) 

D8 Toucan 
Crossing 

at the junction 
with Chesterfield 
Avenue. 

resident Recommended Toucan Crossing to be installed as 
part of the Chapelizod Greenway 
Project and to be located at the 
junction with Chesterfield Avenue, 
Phoenix Park, 32.5 metres west of 
the common boundary of Property 
No.13 and 13A Conyngham Road. 
  

0 11/10/2016 

P
age 72



5 Parking 
Prohibitions 

19839 DARGLE 
ROAD (NW-
EA) 

D9 Loading 
Bay 

on the road. resident Recommended It is recommended that a 10m 
loading bay be provided in the 
existing Pay and Display and Permit 
parking on the east end of Dargle 
Road on the southside as follows: 
The loading bay should be located 
on the east end of Dargle Road on 
the south side from lamp standard 
no 1. on Dargle Road for 10m 
westward. Hours of operation from 
07:00 - 24:00 Mon to Sun. 
Rescind 2 Pay and Display and 
Permit Parking spaces at this 
location. 

3 26/08/2015 

6 Traffic 
Conditions 

33701 NAVAN ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D7 Traffic 
Calming 

 at St Mary's 
Church. 

resident Not 
Recommended 

There is an inbound shared Bus and 
Cycle lane of 3.5 m width which 
ends 27m west of the pedestrian 
crossing at St Mary's Church . Both 
Cyclist and Bus share this space,  
buses can drive in the cycle lane and 
bicycles can use the bus when it is 
safe to do so.Following the end of 
the bus lane up to the pedestrian 
crossing, there is a shared lane 
consisting of a non mandatory cycle 
lane ( advisory cycle lane) and 
vehicle lane of width 3.2m Again 
this is shared space and vehicles are 
allowed to enter the non mandatory 
cycle lane ( advisory cycle lane) and 
cyclist are allowed to enter the 
vehicle lane.(The desirable width for 
a bus lane is 3.5m and a through 
lane is 3.0m)Under the Road Traffic 
Act  all road users should take care 
of other users on the public 
carriageway.It is not proposed to 
change the lanes at this location.   

0 07/09/2016 

P
age 73



7 Traffic 
Conditions 

33991 NORTH ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow 
Box 

outside gate of 
Brookfield Court 
senior citizens 

resident Not 
Recommended 

The Brookfield Court entrance was 
monitored to see if a yellow box is 
required during morning and 
evening peak. 
  
This location does not meet the 
warrant for the provision of a yellow 
box, the required side road traffic 
flows should be significant and the 
side road should serve a minimum 
of fifty houses or a major traffic 
generating facility. 

0 21/09/2016 

8 Traffic 
Conditions 

33856 RATOATH 
ROAD (NW-
EA) 

  Yellow 
Box 

at junction of 
Ventry Drive / 
Ratoath Road. 

cllr 
Murphy 

Recommended At the junction of Ratoath Road  /  
Ventry Drive  install Markings 
RRM020 Yellow Box ( 18 Metres X 8 
Metres)  on both sides of the 
carriageway on the Ratoath Road 
directly adjacent to the southwest 
of Ventry Drive. 

0   

9 School 
Warden 

31193 SAINT 
CANICES 
ROAD (NW-
EA) 

D11 School 
Warden 

at Sacred Heart 
Boys School. 

cllr Reilly Not 
Recommended 

The Road Safety Unit report that 
there is already a School Warden 
operating outside  The Sacred Heart 
Boys School,St Canices Road. 

0 09/05/2016 

10 Pedestrian 
Facilities 

33738 SWORDS 
ROAD (NW-
EA) 

D9 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

Request to 
stagger the 
Pedestrian 
Crossing on 
Swords Road 
near the 
entrance to 
Gaeltacht Park at 
Boyle Sports. 

deputy 
Rock 

Not 
Recommended 

The small island in the middle of the 
junction is there to protect the 
traffic signals as required for 
visibility and also as a refuge to 
pedestrians as it is a wide road. The 
pedestrian crossing is allocated 
enough time to safely cross the road 
as allocated by the width of the 
crossing.  

0 13/09/2016 

P
age 74



11 Traffic 
Conditions 

31146 WILLOW 
PARK ROAD 
(NW-EA) 

D11 Yellow 
Box 

Outside No. 156. deputy 
Rock 

Not 
Recommended 

 A yellow box is used to prevent the 
blocking of junctions. The criteria for 
the provision of a yellow box are 
that the side road traffic flows 
should be significant and that the 
side road should serve a major 
traffic generating facility or a 
minimum of 50 residential units.A 
yellow box is not recommended at 
this location Willow Park Road as it 
does not meet the criteria for the 
provision of same.  A private 
entrance would not be considered 
as a major traffic generating 
facility.Under The Road Traffic 
(Traffic & Parking ) Regulations, 
Section 36 paragraph(2) g;“A vehicle 
shall not be parked in any place, 
position or manner that will result in 
the vehicle obstructing an entrance 
or an exit for vehicles to or from a 
premises, save with the consent of 
the occupier of such 
premises;”Residents should report 
illegal parking to the Gardai or to 
Dublin Street Parking Services tel 
no. 6022500 if vehicles are blocking 
entrances. 

0 03/05/2016 

P
age 75





 
 
 
The Chairman and Members of     
North West Area Committee.     
 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2016 
 

Item No: 24 

 
Ballymun Area Office Report November 2016 
 

1. Community Update 

2. Housing/Estate Management 

3. Ballymun Economic Development/Town Civic Alliance 

4. Safer Ballymun/Drumcondra Glasnevin 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



1. Community Update  

Events  
 
The Otherworld Festival 2016 took place on Monday the 31st October beginning with the 
newly revamped colourful community parade setting off from the two sides of Ballymun, 
Shangan and Poppintree, connecting up and arriving at the Ballymun Plaza for the opening 
of the main event at 6pm. The emphasis this year was on inviting even more community 
groups from the local area to become involved in and play a greater part in the Festival. New 
groups that came on board this year included Doon Court Residents, Belclare Park 
Residents, Ballymun Mens Shed and Baile an tSeachar Laoch Residents. Among the new 
Festival standouts were 
1. The fabulous and magical Spirit garden designed by local community artists in 
 collaboration with BRYR Youth Project, Aisling Project, Poppintree Youth Project and 
 local schools.  
2. The Witches Brew Café, organised and run by the Sillogue Ladies group, which 
 offered tea/coffee and spooky home baking with proceeds going to Pieta House.  
3. A silent disco, which allowed young people to dance while wearing luminous paint 
 and 
4  Spooky storytelling sessions in Axis Theatre.  
 
All elements of the festival were extremely successful and included: Circus Gerbola, Kiddies 
Carousel Rides, Setanta GAA Trad Tent, Main Stage Events/Acts with Giant TV Screen. The 
event culminated with a fantastic Fireworks Display at 8:45pm. The festival is organised by 
the Ballymun Festival Steering Committee in association with DCC, Axis, Gardai, Local 
Youth Projects, schools and community groups. The festival attracted over 5,000 people and 
was extremely successful.  
 
Christmas Tree Events: The team members are working with local communities on 
Christmas Tree Ceremonies. Dates agreed are as follows:  

 Friday the 2nd December, Ballymun: Renaming of Plaza Event from 5pm, (Ballymun 
plaza to be renamed as Cearnog an tSeachtar Laoch with a new sign erected), 
Christmas Tree lighting event from 6pm. Lord Mayor Cllr Brendan Carr will be in 
attendance at this event. 

 Drumcondra: 3pm. Details to be confirmed. 

 Friday the 9th December, Santry, Santry Community Centre, time to be confirmed. 

Social Inclusion  
 
Ballymun Safety Week:  
 
The Community Team helped with a number of elements of Ballymun Safety Week including 
judging the schools poster competition and assisting with the launch. They also organised 
and held a safety information evening for Older People which took place on Thursday the 
20th October at 6pm. This was organised in conjunction with Local Community Gardaí, Fire 
Brigade Service, Citizens Information and Third Age. It attracted a number of local people 
including members from a new active retirement group from Iona Road. 
 
Men’s Sheds: 
Team members assisted in the organisation of and attended the Irish Mens Sheds 
Association National Conference in Belfast on Saturday the 22nd October, and continue to 

Page 78



work as an IMSA advocate for North Dublin Area. A meeting took place with a psychologist 
from St Michaels House around the idea of setting up a specific men’s shed for their service 
users. 
 
An additional community event to be agreed with Ellenfield Residents for Whitehall Area. 
 
Environmental  
Work is continuing with local environmental groups as we move toward the bulb planting 
season. Work was carried out with local residents and GAP to enhance planting beds in 
Gateway Gardens and in Ard na Meala. 
 
General Community Development  
The annual Community & Social Development Grant Scheme closed Friday the 28th 
October.  A number of community groups were assisted with filling in forms. Ongoing 
encouragement is being given by team members for groups to be set up under more formal 
structures that will allow them to access more funding, allowing the groups to become more 
sustainable. Meetings took place with Santry Community Centre, Poppintree Early Learning 
Centre, Aisling Transition, Active Living Ballymun, Sillogue Ladies Club, Magenta Crescent 
Residents and a local consultation took with residents of Magenta Hall and the Parks 
Department around new plans for the enhancement of the tree boundary at Swords Road. 
 
Cabra, Phibsborough, Glasnevin, Pellettstown. 
 
Halloween 
Halloween celebrations were very successful this year. A mini festival was held in 
St.Finbarr`s G.A.A. Club on Halloween night with a “Haunted House” and disco catering for 
over 1000 people. Cabra Mens Group contributed considerably in the management of the 
entire evening. St. Eithne`s Ring Residents organised a similar event on the “Ring” as did 
Ventry Park Residents in Ventry Park. All events were supported by the City Council. 
 
Stoneybatter Pride of Place. 
A new residents association has formed recently in Cabra Drive as a follow on to the overall 
Pride Of Place activities. 
 
Phibsborough/Glasnevin. 
Phibsborough Tidy Towns are continuing with their on-going activities and in particular the 
Royal Canal Bank Residents Group`s local environmental improvements from the Royal 
Canal to Phibsborough Library. 
 
Christmas Events. 
Arrangements are being put in place to facilitate the Lighting of Christmas Trees in 
Phibsborough, Stoneybatter and Blessington Basin. 
 
 

2. Housing/Estate Management Updates 

C.C.T.V  
Ballymun Community CCTV system has two separate operating systems, one of which is 
reaching the end of its useful life and requires replacement.  This is being planned at 
present. The entire system has undergone planned preventative maintenance in recent 
weeks, this work included checking all of the cameras and updating the monitoring station in 
the control room.   
 
 
 

Page 79



Cleansing / Waste Management  
Waste Management and the area office are continuing to combat illegal dumping at open 
spaces. These measures include using the C.C.T.V system to monitor and identify those 
responsible. The area office has targeted illegal dumping around Coultry, Druid and Knowth 
Court and St Margaret’s Road, a number of tenants have been called and warned about 
their behaviour.  
 
 

Ballymun Lettings January - October 2016 

Allocation Category  Housing List Transfer List 

Band 1 Priority   

Welfare 6 1 

Travellers 3  

Surrendering Larger 1 1 

Medical 7 2 

Homeless 14  

Regen  2 

Band 2 9 6 

Band 3 13 12 

Sub Total 53 24 

Total Lettings 77 

Estate Management January - October 2016 

No of Anti social complaints per 1997 act   Drug Related 37 

No of Anti social complaints per 1997 act   Not Drug Related 175 

No of other Complaints  

Total Complaints 212 

Page 80



No of Anti Social Interviews per 1997 act 89 

No of Other Interviews 35 

Total Interviews 124 

No of Requests for mediation 1 

No of Complaints referred to central unit for Action 2 

No of Section 20 Evictions  

No of excluding Orders applied for by Tenant  

No of Excluding orders applied for by DCC  

No of surrender of Tenancies due to Anti Social Behaviour  

No of Notice to Quits sent to Central Unit  

No of Court Orders Granted  

No of Appeals / Judicial Reviews Challenges  

No of Warrants executed (Evictions)  

 
Ballymun Voids 

 

Address Number Type  

Ballygall Parade 79 2 Bed  

Ballygall Parade 87 2 Bed Under Repair 

Belclare Park  43 3 Bed   On offer 

Carton Close 4 2 Bed   

Coultry Drive 29 3 bed  Under repair 

Coultry Drive  87 2 Bed Under repair 

Coultry Drive  96 2 bed Under repair 

Griffith Road 21 2 bed Under repair 

Hampton Wood Ave 103 1 Bed  

Hampton Wood Rd 11 2 Bed   

Longdale Terrace 3 2 bed apt Under repair 

Marewood Crescent 32 1 Bed  

Marewood Crescent 64 1 Bed  Under repair 

Shangan Avenue 34 1 bed Under repair 

Shangan Road 323 2 bed  Allocated 

Shantalla Road  66 3 bed  Allocated 

Silloge Green  3 1 Bed  Under Repair 

Senior Citizens    

Ard Na Meala 47   

Albert College 30 OPU  

Burren  Court 29   

Burren Court 36   

Botanic Avenue 147   

Botanic Avenue 131  Allocated 

Botanic Avenue 139   

Domville Court 3 OPU  

Domville Court  11 OPU   

Sandyhill Gardens 4 O.P.U Allocated 

Pyrite Refurb     

Sandyhill Terrace 5   

Doon Court  8   

Owensilla  53   

Page 81



Pyrite Long Term    

Carton Court  12   

Carton Terrace 6   

Carton Road 10   

Owensilla  3   

 
 
 
 
West Ballymun Update 
 
Halloween 
Dublin City Council have made a huge effort to ensure a speedy clean up after Halloween 
period.  There is still some debris smouldering and that will be removed as soon as it is safe 
to do so.  The Public Domain Officer in the Ballymun area, Cleansing, Parks and Estate 
Management all played a part in ensuring all reports of hoarding bonfire material was 
responded to. As a result the volume of bonfires on the west side of Ballymun was reduced 
in comparison to other years.  A number of spots that would have been used for bonfires in 
the past were not used (Belclare Green, Cranogue Road, and Balcurris Park).  
 
Courts 
Estate Management have met with residents from Knowth Court with a view to continuing 
the painting and estate enhancement programme that has been ongoing in 2015 and 2016.  
The more established groups are getting ready to review the year and set their targets for 
2017 with the help of the Sillogue Neighbourhood Centre facilitators Linda and Val. Speed 
ramps have been installed on Carraig Road to reduce speeding.  Dublin City Council has 
engaged a contractor to repair and resurface paving slabs in identified courts.   Bollards 
have been installed in Cranogue Road as a traffic calming measure also.  Dublin City 
Council is working with the residents of Druid Court with a view to identifying areas that need 
improvements in the public lighting in the courts.  Estate management carried out 12 
interviews relating to reports of illegal dumping in the Poppintree area.  All of those who 
attended for interview had to submit proof of their waste collection.  Dublin City Council is 
working closely with the Public Domain Team in tackling the issue of illegal dumping in the 
area. There has been an increase in the amount of graffiti in the area.  This has been logged 
and is to be removed. 
 
East Ballymun Update 

Pyrite 
Pyrite works are in progress in the Carton Area on the first five houses. Families were 
moved temporarily into the local area and are expected to be home before Christmas, the 
expected date for moving back is the end of November. All residents will be informed of 
potential move dates and phases in the coming weeks. This will be done by letter drop and 
calling door to door. Anybody with enquiries can contact Connell McGlynn on 222 5730. 
 
Halloween Clean Up 
The Cleansing Section and the Public Domain Section in conjunction with the Area Offices 
were busy clearing illegal dumping ahead of Halloween. An information campaign was 
ongoing in industrial estates and housing estates for the need to keep all sorts of materials 
secure and prevent illegal dumping on the run up to Halloween. This resulted in a large 
amount of burning material being removed from the area and reduced the amount of 
bonfires in the area to two fires, which the Parks Section cleared in the following days. 
 
 

Page 82



Coultry/Shangan/Forestwood  
The local office is engaging with new community groups in Shangan, Whiteacre and Coultry 
which resulted in new neighbourhood initiatives. GAP is engaging locals in these projects 
such as clearing parking bays, tree pits and footpaths. Work on the tree pits in Forestwood 
and Sallowood is now complete. Residents continue to work to keep these areas tidy and 
work on planters, monitor the upkeep of gardens and green spaces. Most areas now have 
active resident involved in keeping the area in good shape. Dublin City Council continues to 
supply equipment and the planting materials required. Dublin City Council are currently 
getting tenders/ prices to have all houses treated and washed in the Woodhazel and Coultry 
Terrace areas. 
 
Shangan Avenue 
Issues with snagging and solar systems in Shangan Avenue will finally be resolved in the 
coming weeks. The solar contractor has been in the area in the past two weeks fixing and 
replacing solar panels and will continue resolving any issues with the internal solar system.   
 

3. Ballymun Economic Development/Town Civic Alliance  

 
1. Economic Strategy 
The Economic Sub-Committee is due to meet on 17th November 2016.  The EDO set up 
meetings with the IDA and CBRE to identify employment opportunities for the area.  These 
meetings were also attended by Pamela Connolly (LAP) and Fiona Cooper, DCC Planners. 

 
2. Stimulating economic activity 
i  ‘StartUp Ballymun’ 26th October 2016 - (detailed report is attached) 
 
‘Growing Your Business in a Digital World’ took place on 26th October 2016.  Seventy seven 
people registered for the event with a further twenty five registering on the day.  Nearly 
seventy people attended. 
 
The event included presentations from six experienced entrepreneurs who shared their 
knowledge on all the different cloud based tools they use to run their business.  In addition 
there were presentations from the LEO Office Dublin City on the website grant of €2.5k and 
one to one business mentoring. 
 
ii. Ballymun4Business (B4b) 

 The network meets every two weeks.  The last two meetings have been held in Adult 
Read & Write and SVP 

 There are now thirty active members 

 The tender for a new website closed on Friday 21st October.  The proposals that 
were submitted will be reviewed on 10th November with a view to selecting a 
successful bidder. 

 A banner of the B4b group is now on display on the Towers Pub. It has lead to a 
number of enquires about B4b  

 A number of small initiatives are in the pipe-line including pay and display angels for 
a morning in the car-park to acknowledge the launch of the banner. 

 In the process of opening a new bank account. 
 
iii Enterprise Space 
Two new businesses connections were made as a direct result of the role of EDO.  A food 
start-up contacted me through the Start-Up Ballymun event in April looking for space in 
Ballymun.  A connection was made with John Eniola in the old enterprise centre in St. 
Margaret’s Industrial estate and a deal was struck.  The business is due to open shortly. 

Page 83



I was contacted via the DCC website about available space to run a business that services 
Airbnb clients.  Again a connection was made with John Eniola in the old enterprise centre 
and the business is now up and running. 
 
iv. Vacant Neighbourhood retail units – The Economic Development Officer now has 
access to the vacant DCC units.  A brochure has been produced to market each of the units 
and ‘To Let’ signs have been produced.  The current status of vacant DCC units is:  
 
 

Location Ownership Status Comments 

Coultry Unit B DCC T&C’s offered for a 
new café 

Planning has been 
approved for a new 
café in Coultry. 

Coultry Unit C & D DCC Vacant These units are ready 
for letting  

Turnpike Santry 
Cross Unit 3 

DCC Vacant Dog’s Aid are applying 
for Planning 
permission 

Sillogue, Unit 3 DCC Vacant   This unit is available 
for viewing by 
prospective tenants 

Unit 9 & 10 Main St. Private For sale (POA) Tenants (Boyle Sports 
& Dynasty Chinese) 
unaffected, 3,154 sq. 
ft. 

Unit 1, Gateway Private Vacant KPM Management co. 

Unit 2, Gateway Private For sale (€75,000) – 
sale agreed 

Tenant (Miami Sun) 1 
year into a 5 year 
lease, 546 sq. ft. 

Unit 6, Gateway Private Sale agreed Tenant (Ridgeway 
Barber) unaffected , 
560 sq. ft. 

Santry Cross Private For sale ((700k) or 
rent (70,000) 

Core shell with 4 car 
parking spaces, 7,347 
sq. ft. 

St. Pappins Private For sale Back up for sale after 
being sale agreed 

 
There have been a number of enquires about the Coultry Units but due to remedial works 
they were unavailable for viewing. As these works have now been completed we can now 
start making them available again for viewing.  To raise the profile of the units, a Daft 
account will be set up. 
 
Enterprise Unit database   
A database of all publicly and privately owned units in Ballymun is now completed.  The 
database includes:  

 Location map  

 Drawings 

 Photos 

 Owner details 

 Status (Receivership / available etc.)    
 

Page 84



v. Free Wi-Fi for Plaza – The kit for the Wi-Fi is being ordered and Eircom have been 
contacted to free up the line  
 
   
 
Civic Alliance Update 
The next meeting of the Civic Alliance is scheduled for 1st December 2016. A meeting of the 
Social Sub Committee will be held on 14th November 2016.  Items to be discussed include 
an update on Innovate Dublin. A meeting of the Economic Sub Committee will take place on 
17th November where Liam Barry will give an update on the ‘Start Up Ballymun’ event held 
on 26th October. The next Physical/Environmental Sub Committee meeting will take place on 
24th November 2016. 
 
Update on the Shopping Centre:  An Bord Pleanala oral hearing for the Ballymun CPO has 
been adjourned to the 24 November 2016. Terms have been agreed (subject to Planning 
Permission) with Ballygall Credit Union for relocation to the Ballymun Civic Centre. 
 
Update on the Northern site Ballymun: A number of proposals were submitted by the 
deadline on the 2nd November. These proposals are currently being assessed and further 
clarifications on a number of issues have been sought.  A deadline for return on these 
clarifications is 12 noon Monday 7th November 2016. 
 
Update on the Housing site:  Draft disposal brief for a site at Balbutcher Lane/Cranogue 
Road to be brought before this North West Area Committee meeting.   
 

4. Safety Fora Updates 

Safer Ballymun  

Residents from Doon and Knowth Court gave a review of the estate enhancement works 
and painting programmes they have been involved in throughout the year.  There was a 
display of before and after pictures.  The residents won numerous awards for the work they 
have carried out during the year.  The meeting was well attended and finished with light 
refreshments.   The next Safety meeting is scheduled for 13th of December at 7pm. 
 
The Safety Week was very well received in the community with great participation by local 
schools and senior citizens.  The Community Garda held a number of Safety talks in the 
Senior Citizen complexes.  There was also the open day in the Garda station that was 
visited by the schools and residents.  This is always very well attended.  BRYR organised 
games in the parks. The Community section held an information evening for Senior Citizens 
in the civic offices that were well attended.  BADIG held an information afternoon in the Axis. 
 
Halloween  
Safer Ballymun would like to commend the work that was carried out by Dublin City Council 
staff in the lead up to and over the Halloween period. 
 
 
 
 

The Safer Ballymun week was launched at the last Safer Ballymun meeting on October 18th 
by Councillor Andrew Montague (Deputising for the Lord Mayor). Councillor Montague 
welcomed everyone to the meeting and stated how important it is to ensure Ballymun is a 
safe place to rear a family and to work.   He made reference to his own family and how Safer 
Ballymun is a great forum to deal with issues of safety in the area.  
 

Page 85



Drumcondra Glasnevin Community Forum 
The final meeting of this Forum this year is scheduled to take place on Wednesday 7th 
December. Please note the change of venue to the Skylon Hotel in Drumcondra.     
 
 
 
Other Updates 
 
Ballymun LAP 
It is expected that the draft LAP will be published before the end of the year.  The draft 
Housing and Tenure Report to assist in the preparation of the Draft LAP is complete and an 
information session was held with local Councillors on 8th November. The draft Bat Survey 
has been completed and requires review before its inclusion in the LAP. 
 
Metro North 
The NTA has informed us that they are to appoint a design team to undertake detailed route 
options analysis for New Metro North, which will determine an emerging preferred route, 
including exact route alignment and station locations, which would then go for public 
consultation.  
 
Ballymun Infrastructure 
A submission for funding was made by Dublin City Council to the Local Housing 
Infrastructure Activation Fund (LIHAF) for some of the remaining pieces of infrastructure in 
Ballymun to release housing sites: 
 
1. New road link from Balbutcher Lane North linking into St. Margaret's Road to release the 
Balcurris 10/Naul Park lands 
2. Sillogue Avenue - Main Street Link Road, Sillogue Avenue Realignment and Gateway 
Crescent Extension to release sites in and around Sillogue including the old flat block sites 
3. Shangan Road - Main Street Link Road and Shangan Road attenuation area to release 
the site of the former Shangan flat blocks. 
 
The Hamptonwood Link Road is being progressed separately. Subject to approval of the 
capital budget, funding for this is now to be provided in 2017 and 2018, with consultants to 
be appointed in 2017 to progress the scheme.  The Draft Capital Programme also includes 
Balcurris Road Extension, Sillogue Avenue / Main Street Link Road for 2017 and 2018 and 
Gateway Crescent Extension for 2018 and 2019.   All schemes are dependent on Section 48 
contribution funding, or their inclusion in the LIHAF.  
 
Shopping Centre 
The Bord Pleanala Oral Hearing on the Ballymun Shopping Centre Compulsory Purchase 
Order (CPO) commenced on 26th October (ABP Ref No:29N.CH3290), but was deferred for 
a month to allow for possible negotiations.  Agreement has been reached with the Credit 
Union who will be moving to the Civic Centre.  The OPW are moving any remaining items 
from the Garda station and legal documentation is ready so that transaction should complete 
in the next few weeks.   
 
Northern Site 
A number of tenders were received in respect of the Northern site and are being assessed 
currently. 
 
 
 
Mary Taylor 
Assistant Area Manager 

Page 86



 
 
 
The Chairman and Members of     
North West Area Committee.     
 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2016 
 

Item No: 25 

Wednesday 26th October 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre Ballymun 

16.00 to 19.30 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



 
About ‘StartUp Ballymun’ 
StartUp Ballymun aims to promote enterprise and business opportunities in Ballymun and 
north Dublin.  By hosting a series of business startup themed events the aim is to encourage 
people living in Ballymun and nearby to become self-employed.  It is about encouraging all 
types of enterprises from startups to well established companies to consider Ballymun as a 
place to do business. 
 
The initiative will showcase Ballymun as a place to do business by highlighting attributes 
such as its proximity to Dublin Airport, the M50, City Centre, DCU and also providing 
information latest news in relation to land and vacant sites. 
 
Much of our activities will consist of inviting startups and other more established business 
owners to come to Ballymun, and share their experience with us. 
 
‘How to Grow Your Business in a Digital World’ 
The objective of the event was to demonstrate the benefits of using a range of cloud 
services and applications, which when combined, offer a competitive business model to 
small businesses.   
 
The Speakers 
An experienced panel of speakers shared their own experiences in harnessing digital 
technology.  The speakers were: 

 Salvatore Fanara, MD of Travelling Languages, www.travellinglanguages.com   - 

your language school on the road…. 

  Lorcan Bannon, Head of Client Strategy, Olytico,www.olytico.com  - Social media 

listening 

 Auveen Bell, Social Enterprise & Co-Founder of Blossom Ireland, 

www.blossomireland.ie,  therapy-led camps and after school activities for children 

with intellectual disabilities aged 8 to 18  

 Ross Killeen, MD Event Junkies, www.eventjunkies.ie, a one-stop shop for 

production, shooting and editing needs, with a quick turnaround 

 Elaine Cohalan, Dublin Cookie Company, www.thedublincookieco.com freshly 

baked cookies to order or buy in their cookie shop 29 Thomas St. 

 Simon Cocking, Senior Editor Irish Tech News, www.irishtechnews.net  

 
Some of the FREE tools that were covered included:  

 Salesforce – CRM 

 Whatsapp – internal communications 

 Wordpress -  Web development software 

 We transfer – sharing large files 

  Trello – Project management software  

 Kin – HR management tool 

 Tweetdeck – manage & monitor Twitter activity 

 Survey Monkey – research tool 

 Mailchimp – circulating newsletters  

The presentations were followed by Q&A 
Online trading vouchers €2.5k 
 

Page 88

http://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=6600&d=kN_g18XW0iqetRMydYnPnNP1jW0-3l2EdAKoOejU2g&s=342&u=http%3a%2f%2fwww%2etravellinglanguages%2ecom
http://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=6600&d=kN_g18XW0iqetRMydYnPnNP1jW0-3l2EdFGpYriIgA&s=342&u=http%3a%2f%2fwww%2eolytico%2ecom
http://www.eventjunkies.ie/
http://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=6600&d=1vPz11QJnA_ZCkTImtP2WmKIU8Y_cICRUOH099punQ&s=342&u=http%3a%2f%2fwww%2ethedublincookieco%2ecom%2f
http://www.irishtechnews.net/


Before the speakers commenced Mary MacSweeney from the Local Enterprise Office, 
Dublin City gave a presentation on about the website grant of €2,500.  
 
Business Mentoring 
LEO mentors Noel McGrath & Anne Marie McAuley were on hand to provide one to one 
business mentoring.  In total 25 people availed of the mentoring and had there been time, a 
whole lot more would have liked to avail of the mentoring. 
 
The event was launched by B4b chairman Robert Murphy and chaired by small business 
consultant & mentor Billy Linehan, Celtar business consultants.  
 
What people learned? 
People learned that there are a number of free cloud based tools that businesses can use to 
conduct market research, manage their finance, communicate with and manage staff, 
analyse customer behaviour and share large files easily.  All of this can be done from a 
Smart phone.  The speakers shared their knowledge about selecting the right tools for your 
business and gave examples of how they have made doing business a whole lot easier.   
In addition participants were made aware of the grant of €2.5k available to small business to 
improve their online presence.  
 
Attendance 
A total of 77 people registered for the event with a further 25 people registering on the day.  
In all nearly 70 people were in the Council Chamber for the event.  This represented a 150% 
increase on the April 2016 event.  Furthermore attendees travelled from all over the City & 
County meaning we delivered on our objective of this being a North Dublin event. 
The Council Chamber provided an ideal venue and for most people it was their first time 
visiting. The free parking across the road meant the event was easily accessible.  
 
Marketing 
A significant effort went into marketing the event.  The use of Twitter and Facebook played a 
significant role as well as a considerable poster & leaflet drop in a number of locations 
around North Dublin.  The outdoor visuals on Main St. also helped generate awareness.  
 
 
 
 
 
Testimonials 
Hi Liam, 
 
Thank you very much for yesterday's event. 
 
Very informative and picked up a few very interesting tips from the very well chosen panel. 
 
Will catch Mr. McGrath on another occasion - the mentors were very much in demand! 
 
Hi Billy, 
Thanks again for hosting a wonderful evening. I've come away with so much valuable 
information for my business. 
See you tomorrow, 
Lisa 
 
 
Hi Liam, 

Page 89



Just wanted to express my thanks for super event today, what I gained will be of immense 
value. Would also like to acknowledge, Noel, Robert and Annabelle. 
Thank you. 
Lillian. 
 
 
 
 
Photos of the event 

   
                                                     Mentoring                                                                                Auveen Bell, Blossom Ireland 

  

 
Lto R Billy Linehan, Elaine Cohalan, Robert Murphy & Liam Barry                                                   Ross Killeen, Event Junkies 

Page 90



    
                       Mary MacSweeney, LEO Dublin City                                                                                    Networking! 
 

   
                             Lorcan Bannon, Olytico                                                                          Elaine Cohalan, The Dublin Cookie Co. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Liam Barry 
Economic Development Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91





 
 
 
The Chairman and Members of    Development Department 
North West Area Committee.    Civic Offices 
 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2016 
 

Item No: 27 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
With reference to the proposed disposal of site for a substation at Shangan Green, 
Ballymun, Dublin 9. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
As part of the regeneration of Ballymun new housing developments were constructed at 
Shangan, Ballymun, Dublin 9. In order to service these developments it was necessary to 
provide ESB substations. One such substation, located at Shangan Green, is located on 
land in the ownership of Dublin City Council.         

 

In accordance with the standard terms and conditions for the provision of an electricity 
supply, the City Council is required to provide sites for substations free of charge to the ESB.  
The site in question is shown outlined red and coloured pink on attached Map Index No.SM-
2015-1019.  

 
It is therefore proposed to dispose of the City Council’s interest in this site in fee simple to 
the ESB subject to the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. The site will be transferred to the ESB free of charge. 
 

2. The E.S.B will pay a contribution of €750 (seven hundred and fifty euro) towards the 
City Council’s legal costs incurred in the transaction together with VAT and 
reasonable outlay. 

 
The disposal shall be subject to such conditions as to title to be furnished as the Law Agent 
in his discretion shall stipulate. 
 
The dates for the performance of any of the requirements of the proposed agreement may 
be amended at the absolute discretion of the Executive Manager.  
 
No agreement enforceable at law is created or intended to be created until an exchange of 
contracts has taken place.  
 
 
 
Paul Clegg 
Executive Manager 
 
 

Page 93



 
 
 
 

 

Page 94



                     

 
 
 
The Chairman and Members of    Development Department 
North West Area Committee.    Civic Offices 
 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2016 
 

Item No: 28 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
With reference to the proposed disposal of site for a substation at Shangan Drive, 
Ballymun, Dublin 9. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
As part of the regeneration of Ballymun new housing developments were constructed at 
Shangan, Ballymun, Dublin 9. In order to service these developments it was necessary to 
provide ESB substations. One such substation, located at Shangan Drive, is located on land 
in the ownership of Dublin City Council.         

 

In accordance with the standard terms and conditions for the provision of an electricity 
supply, the City Council is required to provide sites for substations free of charge to the ESB.  
The site in question is shown outlined red and coloured pink on attached Map Index No.SM-
2015-1018.  

 
It is therefore proposed to dispose of the City Council’s interest in this site in fee simple to 
the ESB subject to the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. The site will be transferred to the ESB free of charge. 
 

2. The E.S.B will pay a contribution of €750 (seven hundred and fifty euro) towards the 
City Council’s legal costs incurred in the transaction together with VAT and 
reasonable outlay. 

 
The disposal shall be subject to such conditions as to title to be furnished as the Law Agent 
in his discretion shall stipulate. 
 
The dates for the performance of any of the requirements of the proposed agreement may 
be amended at the absolute discretion of the Executive Manager.  
 
No agreement enforceable at law is created or intended to be created until an exchange of 
contracts has taken place.  
 
 
 
Paul Clegg 
Executive Manager 
 

Page 95



 

Page 96



 
 
 
The Chairman and Members of    Development Department 
North West Area Committee.    Civic Offices 
 
 
 
Meeting: 15th November 2016 
 

Item No: 29 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
With reference to the proposed grant of a lease of New Unit FG, plus one basement 
car space at Ballymun Civic Centre, Ballymun Main Street, Dublin 9. 
 

 
Dublin City Council acquired freehold interest in the Ballymun Shopping Centre on 15th 
December 2014.  As part of the de-tenanting process the Ballygall Credit Union Limited 
(formally Ballymun Credit Union Limited) are in the process of surrendering their leasehold 
interest in Units 20 & 21 Ballymun Shopping Centre and have agreed to relocate to the 
Ballymun Civic Centre. 
 
In respect of the relocation it is proposed to grant Ballygall Credit Union Limited a 20 year 
lease in New Unit FG, Ballymun Civic Centre, Ballymun Main Street, Dublin 9 plus one 
basement car space number 68 subject to the following terms and conditions. 
 

1. That Dublin City Council shall grant a lease for Unit FG, Ballymun Civic Centre which 
shall extend to approximately 179 sq.m. or thereabouts, plus one basement car 
space number 68, shown outlined in red and coloured pink on attached Map Index 
No. SM-2016-0513 for a term of twenty years. 
 

2. That the Ballygall Credit Union Limited shall lodge a Planning Application in respect 
of the Ballymun Civic Centre unit, with the consent of Dublin City Council, within four 
weeks of Council approval, or as soon as practically possible on a date mutually 
agreed between the parties.  
 

3. That this proposal is subject to the receipt of full planning permission for the new 
Credit Union unit in the Ballymun Civic Centre. 

 
4. That within four weeks of the final Grant of Planning Permission the Council shall 

grant a three month Works Licence to the Ballygall Credit Union Limited for the unit, 

for the fee of €1, if demanded. 

5. That the licensed area shall be provided by the Council in shell condition with a party 

wall constructed 

6. That all works shall be agreed in writing with the Council’s Architect prior to the 

commencement of such works.  

Page 97



7. That the lease shall commence immediately upon the expiry of the Works Licence or 

as soon as practically possible on a mutually agreed date, for use of the demised 

area for the retail trade or business of a Credit Union. 

8. That the initial rent for the first five years of the term shall be the sum of €50,000 

(fifty thousand euro) per annum, payable quarterly in advance by standing order or 

electronic funds transfer.  

9. That the rent shall be subject to five yearly rent reviews to the market rental value of 

the unit at that time, on a vacant possession basis disregarding tenant improvement 

works.  

10. That a break option in favour of the lessee/ Ballygall Credit Union Limited shall be 

granted at the end of year five, ten and fifteen. Written notice of intention to operate 

the break option must be given not less than six months prior to the break option 

date. 

11. That the Ballygall Credit Union Limited shall be responsible for fully repairing and 

insuring the demise.  

12. That the Ballygall Credit Union Limited shall be responsible for the payment of rates, 

facilities/service charges, building insurance, waste collection, utilities, taxes and all 

other charges for the demised area and car space.  

13. That the Ballygall Credit Union Limited shall not assign or sublet the demise without 

prior written consent of the Landlord which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

14. The Ballygall Credit Union Limited shall not carry out any structural alterations or 

erect any external signage without the prior written consent of Dublin City Council.  

15. That the Council shall retain a right of access for the purposes of maintaining 

services running through the unit.  

16. That the Ballygall Credit Union Limited shall indemnify Dublin City Council against 

any and all claims arising from its use of the property.  The Lessee shall hold Public 

Liability Insurance (minimum of €6.5 million) and Employers Liability Insurance 

(minimum of €13 million) and contents insurance.  

17. That the lease agreements shall contain covenants and conditions as normally 

contained in agreements of this type.  

18. That the Ballygall Credit Union Limited shall be responsible for the payment of any 

Stamp Duty that may arise on the creation of the lease.  

19. That each party shall be responsible for their own fees and costs incurred in this 

matter.  

20. That upon the granting of the Works Licence, or as soon as practically possible, the 

Council shall use its best endeavours to remove the sculpture from outside the new 

Credit Union Unit in the Ballymun Civic Centre, subject to all necessary approvals 

being obtained. 

Page 98



21. That each party shall be responsible for their own fees and costs incurred in this 

matter.  

22. That this proposal is subject to satisfactory proofs of title.  

 
 
The disposal shall be subject to any such covenants and conditions as the Law Agent in his 
discretion shall stipulate. 
 
The dates for the performance of any of the requirements of the proposed agreement may 
be amended at the absolute discretion of the Executive Manager. 
 
No agreement enforceable at law is created or is intended to be created until exchange of 
contracts has taken place. 

 
 

 
 
 
Paul Clegg    
Executive Manager 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 99



 

Page 100


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the North West Area Committee Meeting held on Tuesday 18th October 2016
	2 Questions to the Area Manager
	3 Cabra Area Office Report, Fergus Synnott, Administrative Officer
	5 Housing Cabra/Finglas Report, Derek Healy, Housing Manager
	6 Finglas Area Office Report, Aidan Maher, Assistant Area Manager
	14 Public Domain Report, John Twamley, Public Domain Officer
	15 Sports & Wellbeing Partnership Report
	16 Quarter 3 Derelict Sites Section update for the North West Area Committee, Nial Dully, Administrative Officer and Helen McNamara, Senior Executive Officer, Planning & Property Development Department
	19 Traffic Service Requests, Status Report
	20 Minutes of the Traffic Advisory Group (TAG) Meeting
	24 Ballymun Area Office Report, Mary Taylor, Assistant Area Manager
	25 "Growing Your Business in a Digital World", Liam Barry, Economic Development Officer
	27 With reference to the proposed disposal of site for a substation at Shangan Green, Ballymun, Dublin 9
	28 With reference to the proposed disposal of site for a substation at Shangan Drive, Ballymun, Dublin 9
	29 With reference to the proposed grant of a lease of New Unit FG, plus one basement car space at Ballymun Civic Centre, Ballymun Main Street, Dublin 9

